NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING
October 8, 2019
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Regular Meeting of the Montgomery City Council will

be held on Tuesday, October 8, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. at the City of Montgomery City Hall, 101 Oid
Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas for the purpose of considering the following:

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduted on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to
speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action
on an item but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time
allowed per speaker may be limited.

CONSENT AGENDA:

1.

Matters related to the approval of minutes of the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held on
September 24, 2019.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:
RESOLUTION SUBMITTING NOMINEE(S) AS CANDIDATE(S) FOR THE ELECTION
OF THE MONTGOMERY CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT’S BOARD OF
DIRECTORS 2020-2021 TERM.

Consideration and possible action on cancelling City Council’s second meetings of the month
for November and December 2019.

Consideration and possible action regarding recurring street closure of the south portion of
McCown between SH105 and Caroline Street on the 2™ and 4™ Sunday of the month for Sunday
Market as requested by the HMBA.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:
RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,

TEXAS, DESIGNATING THE COURIER NEWSPAPER AS THE OFFICIAL
NEWSPAPER FOR THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT.




CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

6.

10.

11.

Presentation by the Montgomery Historical Society regarding preservation of historic stryctures,

Consideration and possible action regarding a Utility and Economic Feasibility Study for
Promocon USA, LLC (West Lakes Development — Dev. No. 1904).

Consideration and possible action regarding authorizing Jones|Carter to proceed with
preparation of a Master Drainage Study of Town Creek Watershed per the proposal dated
September 26, 2019 in connection with the future drainage improvements to be completed on
Ander’s Branch through the Texas General Land Office Grant,

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:
AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, LEVYING A SEVEN

PERCENT (7%) TAX UPON THE COST OF OCCUPANCY OF ANY SLEEPING ROOM
FURNISHED BY ANY HOTEL, MOTEL OR OTHER OVERNIGHT LODGING WITHIN
THE CITY OR ITS EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION USED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH CHAPTER 351 OF THE TEXAS TAX CODE; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION
OF THE OCCUPANCY TAX; PROVIDING FOR CIVIL PENALITIES AND INTEREST
FOR DELINQUENCY IN PAYING THE CITY OCCUPANCY TAX; PROVIDING FOR A
FINE OF UP TO $500 FOR VIOLATING THIS ORDINANCE AND FOR OTHER CIVIL
REMEDIES; DESIGNATING THE USE OF THE REVENUE DERIVED TO THE CITY
FROM THE OCCUPANCY TAX; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF
ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER PUBLICATION.

Consideration and possible revised action regarding a road closure request from Bears Etc. for
OctoBEAR(fest to be held on October 12, 2019.

Consideration and possible action to authorize engagement of Radcliffe Bobbitt Adams Polley
as Bond Counsel for upcoming Refunding of 2012 Series Bonds.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or
for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the
qualifications in Sections 551,071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real
property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation
regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)
of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.

12,

13.

Adjourn into Closed Executive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter
551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the following:
a) Section 551.071 — Consultation with City Attorney regarding pending claims and
contracts; and
b) Section 551.087 — Deliberation regarding economic development negotiations
regarding Town Creek Crossing.

Reconvene into Open Session.







MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING and REGULAR MEETING
September 24, 2019
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Sara Countryman declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

Present: Sara Countryman Mayor
Jon Bickford City Council Place # 1
Rebecca Huss City Council Place # 4
Tom Cronin City Council Place # 5
Absent: John Champagne, Jr. City Council Place # 2
T.J. Wilkerson City Council Place # 3
- Also Present: Richard Tramm City Administrator
Susan Hensley City Secretary
Larry Foerster City Attorney

Chris Roznovsky City Engineer

INVOCATION

Jon Bickford gave the Invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to

speaking. each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action

on an item but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time

allowed per speaker may be limited.




Mr. Bert “Rusty” Herridge, said he came because many times people that serve the community are
always getting complaints and people never give any kind of praise for the good that you do. Mr.
Herridge said you serve our City because you care, Mr. Herridge said he and his wife Marsha had an
incident happen on May 4, 2019, that was a very unfortunate thing, they had friends come in from
Bryan and they were attending the Antique Festival with them. Mr, Herridge said his wife suffered a
fall in front of the Community Center at about 3:30 p.m. and the ordeal got worse as she was transported
due to her blood pressure getting down very low. Mr. Herridge said since his wife had suffered a
couple of strokes in the last five years, the ordeal went on and on and after five hours his wife had a
CAT scan and she was released at 9 p.m., so it was a long day. Mr. Herridge said they have good
health insurance, and they are both retired school teachers from Montgomery, so he was expecting
some out of pocket expenses and he did not know how much or what it would be, but he decided he
would contact our City and let them know they had suffered an incident that they did not want anybody
else to be involved in. Mr. Herridge said when you have festivals, you have folks walking around and
they could trip and fall. Mr. Herridge said his wife has some stitches, she was released and eventually
fine and they are blessed and thankful for her recovery. Mr. Herridge said he contacted the City and
asked if they would be willing to help with any overage that might occur with out of pocket expenses,
Mr. Herridge said he was not wanting to sue anyone, and he does not believe in lawsuits. Mr. Herridge
said the City said to make sure and take care of all the bills and get them to the City and the City will
help. Mr. Herridge said he was here tonight to thank the City for working with them and the
representative for the City’s health insurance company, and for fixing the parking lot. Mr. Herridge
said they were here as citizens that moved to Montgomery in 1983 when there were 350 children in
the high school, and he was one of the junior high coaches; they raised three boys here and Montgomery
is their home. Mr. Herridge said they grew up around Eastland, Texas near Abilene, stating they have
been here so long, this is really their home. Mr. Herridge said they wanted to thank the City for all
they do.

Mr. Randy Burleigh advised he was here representing the Buffalo Springs HOA Board, stating the
other members wanted to be here, but they had other duties. Mr. Burleigh said they have been having
a lot of power failure recently, stating that not all of Montgomery sees the power failures the north side
of town does. Mr, Burleigh said the switch is right in front of the Community Center and when it goes
down the north side, most of downtown SH 105 has power. Mr. Burleigh said the residents, businesses,
restaurants, schools and the City’s major Water Treatment Plant and sewer lift stations go down, so it

is a big issue. Mr. Burleigh said the data for the last 15 months shows they have lost power seven

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 2




times. Mr. Burleigh said starting in June this year, they have lost power every month, and some of the
times are eight to nine hours in duration. Mr. Burleigh said they need some relief and they are asking
the City to form a committee or a group that would get with Entergy to discuss looking at maintenance
of the system. Mr. Burleigh said in town there are probably issues with poles and transformers being
old and rusted out, and possibly look at adding a switch where they could keep more people with power
if they lost power. Mr. Burleigh said they would like to work with the City and if they need more

ammunition, he could get the School District and businesses to come to the City,

Mayor Countryman said this was not a forum to talk back and forth, but she did want to let Mr, Burleigh
know that she did talk to our City Administrator about this issue on Monday. Mayor Countryman said
she knew the public inflicted damage were wrecks and those poles have subsequently been moved
further off the road. Mayor Countryman said the City Administrator is working diligently to get with
Entergy to have them come out and look at all the lines and clear everything, and to look at the old
equipment that needs to be replaced and updated. Mr, Tramm stated that he knew they were going to

be talking about other topics soon so they can discuss this topic as well.

Mr, Mark Perez, a City resident, advised he had received a couple of notifications regarding the
business development that is proposed to go in on Clepper Street. Mr. Perez said he was asking City
Council, as the governing body, to consider caution when rezoning property that close to the Historic
District because he is aware of some of the initiatives the City is undergoing right now regarding the
redevelopment and planning of the downtown area. Mr. Perez said his concern is about setting a
precedent, where they can just move residential property to commercial zoning, especially in
conjunction with the analysis around business risk as opposed to encouraging new commercial
development. Mr. Perez said there is a good case where they need some hotel and motel
accommodations, but there is also the question of what happens if that fails and does not work, then
that property that strips right into a giant block of residential property is now zoned commercial and
can be used commercially by any other business, Mr, Perez said that is some of the long term concerns
they have about the property, but said they trust City Council’s judgement and just asked them to be
thoughtful of the fact as it relates to the proposal.

PRESENTATION:

1. Presentation of Plague of Appreciation to outgoing City Administrator Jack Yates for his vears

of service and dedication to the City of Montgomeryv.

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




Mayor Countryman presented the plaque to Mr, Yates on behalf of the City of Montgomery
and City Council, regarding his dedication to the City and years of service. Mayor Countryman
read the plaque into the record as follows: “Presented to Jack Yates in recognition of your years
of dedication and services as the City Administrator from March 1, 2014 - September 30, 2019.
Your diligence and efforts to improve the quality of City services for residents and to promote
growth and development in the City will always be remembered by the City of Montgomery.
Presented by the Mayor and Members of City Council on September 24, 2019.” Mayor
Countryman advised Mr. Yates he had done a great job for the City.

Mr. Yates expressed his thanks to City Council, staff and to the people of the City. Mr. Yates

said everybody treated him very well and he appreciated that very much,

INFORMAL - PUBLIC HEARING

2. City Council will conduct an_informal Public Hearing for the purpose of giving all

interested persons the right to appear and be heard regarding a possible future rezoning for

a proposed hotel/motel type project requesting to be located at 1062 Clepper Street,

Montgomery, as submitted by Larry Jacobs,

Mayor Countryman convened the informal Public Hearing at 6:21 p.m.

Mr, Larry Jacobs advised he wanted to address some of the concerns mentioned. Mr.
Jacobs said he has been in the City 20 years and they grew up in Montgomery County and
they intend on being here a lot longer. Mr. Jacobs said they have been sort of on hold since
they held their previous hearings and said the City has 25-foot set back lines and they are
talking about at least a 25-foot vegetation line that they are not going to touch. Mr. Jacobs
said all their detention, which won’t be much, will run off into the corner next to Jim’s
Hardware parking lot, where there is a berm. Mr, Jacobs said if anything, he thought they

might improve the drainage. Mr. Jacobs said the fronts of the cabins will face the street.

Mr. Jacobs said one of the things they have discussed is if they should go bust. Mr, Jacobs

said he has told City Council this is the family retirement fund. Mr. Jacobs said one of the

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




options they could do is with a Special Use Permit. Mr. Jacobs said with the Special Use
Permit he can’t just say he is closing this place and opening a grocery store, his use is
limited. Mr. Jacobs said the buildings they are wanting will be built on blocks, so if they
fail, they can sell them. Mr, Jacobs said they do have an exit strategy to protect the

neighborhood. Mr. Jacobs said they are going to preserve the trees as much as they can.

Mr. Perez said there was some clearing done behind his property that was done last week
and did not know if it was related to this project. Mr. Perez said if the brush areas remain
intact, he thinks that would probably be good. Mayor Countryman asked Mr. Jacobs to get

with Mr. Perez to discuss the information.

Jon Bickford said he wanted to make sure there were no other citizens that wanted to make
comments. Mr. Jacobs said he did talk to the Lobojacky’s, McCowan’s and the Brosch
residences. Mr, Perez said he liked the spirit of the project; he was just worried about

turning those plats one at a time.

Adjourn Informal Public Hearing

Mayor Countryman adjourned the informal Public Hearing at 6;25 p.m,

Reconvene into Regular Meeting

Mayor Countryman reconvened into the Regular Meeting at 6:25 p.m.

CONSENT AGENDA:

City Council elected to vote on the Consent Agenda items individually.

3.

Matters related to the approval of minutes of the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held on

September 10, 2019,

Tom Cronin moved to approve the minutes of the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held
on September 10, 2019. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously,

(3-0)

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5




4, Consideration and possible action reparding approval of an Alcohol Beverage Permit

Application for H-Wines Winery to be located at 14343 Liberty Street, Montgomery, as

submitted by Domaine des Hospitalieres, LI.C.

Jon Bickford moved to approve the Alcohol Beverage Permit Application for H-Wines Winery
to be located at 14343 Liberty Street, Montgomery, as submitted by Domaine des

Hospitalieres, LLC. Tom Cronin seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding a road closure request from Bears Etc. for

OctoBEARfTest to be held on October 12, 2019,

Jon Bickford asked if the City had checked with the business owners there to make sure they
are good with the road closure. Jon Bickford said there is also a new barbeque opening up at
the corner of College and McCown, stating he did not know if they were planning on being
open on Saturdays or not, but this could cut off his Saturday business, or anyone else that might
be back in there. Jon Bickford said he thought this is a great idea and it is a great event, but he
did not want to take away from their business without them knowing about it. Jon Bickford
said he thought they did this before for the Wine or Antique Festival, where they check with
the businesses and make sure they are okay with the closure, Rebecca Huss said they talked

about it for the Whitley Winery event.

Jon Bickford said he would move to table until they have a chance to talk to the businesses.
Rebecca Huss said she thought it would be difficult to table it given the timing of the next
meeting versus the timing of the festival, so they could approve pending verification of
approval by the businesses. Jon Bickford said he would be okay with that if they had
confirmation from the local business owners that they are okay with the arrangement. Mr,
Tramm said pending City Council approval of this, with that restriction, he will make sure they

get with the business owners that are in the affected area.
Jon Bickford moved to accept the road closure request, pending confirmation from the

businesses that are on or about that road, being unanimously supportive of the event because

there could be some people that are closed on that day.

09/24/13 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




Tom Cronin said that Whitley Winery was generally closed on Saturday and the barbeque
restaurant was open last Saturday, that one might be affected, but if he had a barbeque
restaurant, he would think it would benefit them. Jon Bickford said that would be their choice,

Tom Cronin said he appreciated Jon Bicktord looking out for the local business owners.

Tom Cronin seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously, (3-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of a parking lot lease extension number

5 with Consolidated Communications of Texas Company.

Mr. Tramm recommended approval of the fifth renewal of the parking lot lease extension with

Consolidated Communications that goes back to 1994,

Jon Bickford moved to approve the parking lot lease extension number 5 with Consolidated

Communications of Texas Company. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion,

Discussion: Tom Cronin asked Mr. Tramm about the map and asked if Consolidated owns the
parking behind the hair salon and asked if that was correct. Mr. Tramm said Mr,
McCorquodale pulled that information from Montgomery County Appraisal District. Tom
Cronin said he was surprised since he thought they only owned the property directly behind
their building. Mr, Tramm said in the agreement it does say the property goes to the south,

The motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

Consideration _and possible action regarding approval of the Montgomery FEconomic

Development Corporation Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020,

Rebecca Huss moved to approve the Montgomery Economic Development Corporation
Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020, as presented. Jon Bickford seconded the motion.

Discussion: Jon Bickford said as a key point the MEDC did put in $76,000 for streets and
sidewalks this year and another $50,000 for utility extensions, which is about an $11,000

increase and they are headed in the right direction,

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7




The motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

8. Consideration and possible action regarding a road closure for Montgomery Police Department

National Night Out.

Rebecca Huss stated this would be on the west side of the Parlc.

Jon Bickford moved to approve the street closure request for National Night Out on October

i, 2019, from Shephard to Eva to Caroline from 5:45 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Tom Cronin seconded

the motion.

Discussion: Rebecca Huss said as a note, all the houses along this street are rear loading so

people can still get in and out of their houses and travel down Caroline Street.

The motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

9. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports,

A.

Administrator’s Report — Mr. Tramm presented his report to City Council. Mr, Tramm

said with Tropical Storm Imelda that came through, the City was hit much less than a
lot of other parts of the County. Mr. Tramm said staff was really struck by how close
much of the drastic flooding was and yet only around two inches of rain fell in the City.
Mr. Tramm said this is an example of how you prepare for such storms and you never

take them for granted.

Mr, Tramm said he had spoken to Mr, Mack Woodward, with the Sam Houston
Memorial Museum, regarding the Crane Cabin repair and said they will be able to work
with the contractor they have identified at a substantially reduced cost. Mr. Tramm
said it will not be quite as much of a discount as they had previously thought because
there are some insurance requirements they must deduct, but it will still be half the cost
of what they had previously thought. Mr. Tramm said one additional benefit with this
contractor is, they were going to have to wait until January or February with the

previous contractor, but with this contactor, they will be moving forward in the next

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 8




couple of weeks. Rebecca Huss asked if the MEDC would get their money back, Mr.
Tramm said he would expect whatever is left should go back to the MEDC.

T.J. Wilkerson arrived at 6:40 p.m.

Tom Cronin asked if Sam Houston was sharing with the cost or just recommending a
qualified vendor, Mr. Tramm said they are not sharing in the costs, but in this case,
they provided the vendor that is saving approximately $10,000. Mr. Tramm said the
City appreciates the help they have provided, which included someone coming out and
evaluating the cabin in person. Mr. Tramm said the contractor they will be utilizing
has worked on their structures. Tom Cronin said it is probably late, but since this is a
historic building is there grant money available for this project because he knows
historically it takes forever to get grant money. Mr. Tramm said maybe in the future
they might be looking for that. Rebecca Huss said the Fernland Board has stated that
you can sometimes get grant money, but you usually pay for the repairs and then apply
for the grant money. Mr. Tramm said there may still be the opportunity to do that.
Tom Cronin said that was good because Dr, Matt Fuller offered to do the grant for free
and stated that he had done multiple grants representing millions of dollars, Mr.

Tramm said he will follow up with Dr, Fuller.

Mr. Tramm advised that work has resumed on the Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) Project in the Baja/MLK area. Mr. Tramm said the Wine and Music
Festival was this last weekend and he will be meeting with The Chamber in a week and
a half for their after-action Emergency Action Report to see how the Emergency Action
Plan came together. Mr, Tramm said The Chamber did work to significantly upgrade
emergency plans they had in the past, which is something the City is looking to do from
a Police Department and City perspective for all events going forward. Mr. Tramm
said they are all aware of things that have occurred all over the country and they want
to make sure the citizens and visitors to Montgomery are as safe as possible while

attending events.

Mr. Tramm said last month there was a question about a historic bridge the City is

looking at acquiring, and it was his understanding that it would be on Commissioner’s

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 9




Court for them to consider earlier today, but when they reviewed the agenda on Friday
it was not on the agenda, so they are keeping their eyes out for the item and they will
be reaching out to the Commissioner’s office to make sure they keep up with the
information. Jon Bickford asked if the City made the decision that they wanted to
pursue getting that bridge for a future park location and asked who made that decision,
because he did not know if it ever came before City Council to see if they wanted the
bridge, nor did he know where the bridge would go. Mr. Tramm said that was the
information he had from the previous City Administrator that he took, so if he is
jumping the gun, he needs to know that. Jon Bickford said before they get into another
situation with something they got for free, they need to find out what they are going to
get and what they are going to do with it, and how much it is going to cost to put it
back together again and who is going to maintain the bridge and what the City gets out
of it. Jon Bickford said if he understands it correctly, this is a railway bridge so he
does not know what the City is going to do with that just yet, but he would really like
to understand everything before they commit ourselves and before they say the City
has made a decision to move this bridge here, they need to understand what it means
to move the bridge here. Mr, Tramm said he would do some more background on the

information and then he will be prepared to discuss the matter in better detail.

Mr. Tramm said as the City’s fiscal year ends, they are starting to communicate with
the auditing firm so they can be prepared to pick that up after the fiscal year ends. Mr.

Tramm said they handle a lot of the information via electronic transmissions.

Public Works Report - Mr. Mike Muckleroy, Director of Public Works, presented his

report to City Council. Mr. Muckleroy advised they replaced a 2-inch gate valve at the
end of Tetra Vista, installed a new 2-inch master meter for the Cedar Crest Community,
completed four work orders for in-point maintenance, four work orders for water leaks
and three work orders for water taps. Mr. Muckleroy said on the wastewater side they
installed wooden pickets on the gate to Lift Station 4, for appearances, extended a
couple of buried manholes, one in front of the Fire Department and one in front of
Spirit of Texas Bank, continued pumping the manhole in Terra Vista, completed two
work orders for sewer taps and had no sewer stoppages for the month. Mr. Muckleroy

said on the street and drainage side, they had catch basins in Terra Vista repaired by a

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10




contractor, repaired sidewalks and asphalt from previous water leaks on Caroline
Street, trimmed low hanging limbs throughout the City and the contractor for the

Buffalo Springs Bridge made some pot hole repairs.

Mr. Muckleroy reported on the building facility maintenance side stating they
coordinated the painting for City Hall with a contractor, delivered barricades for the
Whitley Vineyards event, replaced the flags at City Hall and completed 21 work orders
for general City Hall maintenance issues.  Mr. Muckleroy said for Parks and
Recreation they had several repairs of the Memory Park irrigation system, set up and
clean up from the Flag Festival, replaced dead trees at Homecoming Park and Cedar
Brake Park, stained the foot bridge at Cedar Brake Park and installed the kiddy cushion
in playground equipment areas, Mr, Muckleroy said they completed 35 work orders
for park maintenance issues, the docents reported 336 visitors and they provided 28
tours for the month, with 300-500 visitors during the Flag Festival and they provided
25-50 tours on that day. Mayor Countryman said overall the month looks light from

the visitor’s standpoint, but when they count the Flag Festival it was a busy month.

Mr. Muckleroy advised he attended a walk-through of the Villas of Mia Lago, Section
2, attended a monthly meeting with the Fernland docents, met with the Sam Houston
representative at Fernland, looked at the Crane Cabin and attended the budget
workshop and met with the TML safety coordinator to discuss future safety training
opportunities. Mr. Muckleroy advised one of his crew had attended a chlorinator

maintenance class in Conroe.

Rebecca Huss said she noticed in the last couple of months there have been a lot of
work orders for City Hall and asked if the building needed repairs. Mr. Muckleroy
advised the work orders are for anything requested at City Hall, which could be several
things and said he could get a detailed list if needed. Rebecca Huss said she might ask
for that.

Jon Bickford asked where they were with finishing the smoke testing. Mr., Muckleroy

said they were not finished, but with the lack of rain, it got pushed to the back burner.

Mr, Muckleroy said with the new budget year and having more money for maintenance,

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




he is going to push that off to a contractor to try and get it completed in the new budget
year. Jon Bickford asked if they had bids for quotes out yet. Mr. Muckleroy said they
did not have that done yet, and said they were going to talk to our utility contractor
first. Jon Bickford asked if they could get some estimates from other people and see
what they can come up with because they need to get that project done so they can get

the leak fixed. Jon Bickford thanked Mr. Muckleroy for supporting all the activities.

Police Department Report — Police Chief Anthony Solomon presented his repott to

City Council. Chief Solomon reported on the initiative they have been doing on Bessie
Price and MLK, stating the numbers have gone down at those locations and they would
like to think they have gone done with them being in those areas and having the radar
trailer there. Chief Solomon said when the radar trailer is not there, they have an actual
officer in that area and people have actually slowed down and they will be doing this

in other areas of the City.

Chief Solomon said the City Administrator talked about the events and activities that
have been going on around the City and how they are trying to change how people look
at the security and what they need during the events. Chief Solomon said they had an
event on Saturday night and they had an EMS tent at the location where they ended up
taking care of about four people. Chief Solomon said security wise the Department
was there, and they reviewed the situation and they will be attending a debriefing
sometime on October 3, 2019, to go over what they saw and how they can improve the
security., Chief Solomon said they are also working with the Christmas Parade and are
looking into changing the route of the Parade, which they think the new route is pretty
good. Chief Solomon said the new route will keep the Parade from going through the
neighborhoods. Rebecca Huss asked what the main goal was for the change in route.
Chief Solomon said the main goal for the change was to keep from bottlenecking the
parade and he has never seen a parade go through the neighborhood so they are
rerouting the Parade and it should be fine. Chief Solomon said they will need more
manpower for the Parade, so they are adding the Montgomery ISD Police to help with
the Parade.

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12




Jon Bickford asked how the Department was doing. Chief Solomon said they were

doing great.

Court Department Report — Mrs. Kimberly Duckett, Court Administrator, presented

her report to City Council. Mrs, Duckett stated during the month of August they had
233 citations collected with the total amount of $3,020.15. Mrs. Duckett said the
Warrants Officer collected 9,984 warrants. Mrs. Duckett said the night Police Officers
have done very well processing warrants and said they do a great job. Mayor
Countryman said two months ago the Court had the same amount of warrants and they
collected $10,000 less. Mrs. Duckett said you really can’t pinpoint the amount the
citations bring in, stating the warrants go up and down, and the amount is based on the
actual warrants being served. Mrs. Duckett said they hope the people that are served
come in and pay their warrants once they are released from jail, but sometimes they
don’t, and they go back into the FTA rotation. Mrs, Duckett said the Warrant Officer
does serve the people in jail and once they are released, they are supposed to come in
and take care of their warrants by either setting a court date or request time served, but
sometimes it does not go as planned and they get back into the system. Mrs, Duckett

said it is not just money, it is physical labor and trying to get the warrants worked.,

Utility/Development Report — Mr, Tramm presented the report to City Council. Mr,

Tramm advised last month he had discussed the 60- and 90-day arrears numbers and
said the billing office is putting the changes discussed into effect. Mr. Tramm said
when they have customers who just move out and cease their utility service, most come
in and close out the account, but there are some times when people just leave, Mr,
Tramm said in the past the accounts have carried on for several months with additional
fees occurring with no one there and they make it to the 60-90-day category. Mr,
Tramm said next month if there is no activity at the location, they will be closing out
the account and someone will verify that no one is there. Mr. Tramm said there have
been some cases where the account has been let go on for the 60-90-day range and then
someone moves in and they see the water is on, so they just start using the water. Mr.
Tramm said most people would know to set up the account, but sometimes they don’t

and then they must get the bill sorted out, so it is easier to cut it off and start out fresh.

09/24/19 Counci! Meeting Minutes - Page 13




Mr. Tramm noted on page 3 of the report that the call log shows a large increase,
advising that the City had a new telephone system put in and a lot of calls were getting
routed to the front. Mr. Tramm said they had almost 2,200 calls for the month and it
became like a switchboard. Mr, Tramm said the phone system has been corrected and
that number will be coming down. Mr. Tramm said they won’t get a true figure until
October. Mr. Tramm said there was also a discussion of the Community Building
rental related to non-profit usage and last month they had 19 rentals, 15 generated no
revenue. Mr. Tramm said they have City personnel that clean the building and the City
is losing money on the non-profit rentals. Mr, Tramm said working with City staff, he
will be coming to City Council in the next two months to get a policy regarding that

rental information.

Mr, Tramm said during the month of August Memory Park water usage was 91,000
gallons which is slightly down from 111,000 gallons from the previous month. Mr.
Tramm said as Mr. Muckleroy reported, there had been some irrigation repairs

completed and they have had enough rain to fill the Memory Park pond.

Rebecca Huss said this is the first month the City has had more than $200,000 in utility
revenues, which is a milestone for the City. Rebecca Huss said when she first started,
they rarely had $100,000 revenue in the summer, which has doubled in the last six
years, Mr, Tramm said he would suspect with the way growth is occurring in the City,
it won't be the last milestone you will see. Rebecca Huss said there has been a lot of
usage. Mayor Countryman said she thought $30,000 for permits was quite impressive

and when she first became Mayor, they were in four digits,

Tom Cronin asked about Fernland, which went from 4,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons
in July and August and asked if there was any reason for the increase, Mr, Muckleroy
said they had redone the flower beds at Fernland, and they ran the sprinklers to get the

plants established and now they have cut back on the watering,
Water Repoit — Mr. Michael Williams, with Gulf Utility Service, Inc., presented his

report to City Council. Mr, Williams reviewed the district alerts, stating that on the
19™ of July they had a fow system pressure and when they went out, they found that

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




the wells were not coming on and they had to manually bypass the wells and get an
electrician out for service. Mr. Williams said the electrician replaced the liquid level
controller because they found the probes that had been listed as replaced had not been
replaced, and they did not see any more issues at that time. Mr. Williams said the

bottom three alerts were due to power failures.

Mr. Williams said the effluent trend showed 4.101 million gallons, the daily peak flow
was August 17, 2019, at 181,000 gallons and the daily average flow was 132,300
gallons. Mr. Williams said the effluent monitoring report shows that all samples were
within compliance for August, which they reported with a half inch of rain. Mayor
Countryman said the report states the power failure was on August 15, 2019, but Mr,
Burleigh’s report shows August 18, 2019, and asked if he was sure that was the same
incident. Mr. Williams said yes because when their operators go out to respond to
alarms, the calls are time stamped and stated this report does not go through August
18, 2019, it ends on August 17, 2019, Jon Bickford said that was the wastewater
treatment plant, which is on the other side of SH 105 so it might not have been affected

by the power outage.

Mr, Williams said during the month they have continued to look for water leaks, stating
that he has come out to help Public Works and they did identify an issue at the water
plant where the off probes were not responding accurately every single time. Mr,
Williams said they were not sure how often or how much the tank overflowed, but they
did see evidence of overflow on the grounds and behind the plant where the water
would dump. Mr. Williamns said they proposed a change to the City to Public Works
and they changed the probes out, Mr, Williams said they are not going to use probes
anymore because what happens is, they corroded and then they would not catch good
metal to tell the well when to shut off. Mr. Williams said they went in with a digital
device that is based off pressure rather than shorting a probe out, so they are a lot more
effective and reliable. Rebecca Huss asked when they found this problem. Mr,
Williams said it was August 29, 2019, and August 30, 2019, it was repaired. Rebecca
Huss said they have another half month of terrible losses. Mr. Williams said they still
need to verify some of the billing. Rebecca Huss said if they lost $10,000 - $15,000
last month, and it is worse this month, that is another $10,000 to $15,000 plus another

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15




half month, which is up to about $40,000. Mr. Williams said that sounds about right,
but the overflowing was not constant, it was intermittent because no one saw the
overflow, Mr, Williams said typically if you have a bad probe it will be found within
a day or two because the operator will get on site and it is still overflowing. Mr.
Williams said in these instances when they arrived onsite, they would not see an
overflow or any standing water. Rebecca Huss asked how they could not notice five
million gallons of water on the ground. Mr. Williams said it was because it was not
overflowing at a constant rate. Rebecca Huss said five million gallons on the ground
would have to be a noticeable puddle. Jon Bickford asked how big around are the water
tanks. Jon Bickford said it would take a lot of water to come over the top of that tank
to get to five million gallons, and for nobody to see that, it had to have been left for a
while. Jon Bickford said he did not know how far the water could get over the top of
that tank before it spills over, there is a sheer that gets to a half inch tall before it breaks
to the top. Mr. Williams said it will only overflow as much as the gallons per minute
of the well produces. Jon Bickford asked how many gallons per minute will the well
produce. Mr. Williams said Well 3 produces 650 gallons per minute and Well 4 is
about 1,500 gallons per minute. Jon Bickford asked if they both feed into this tank.
Mr. Williams said that is correct. Rebecca Huss asked if they have noticed elevated
run times on those wells. Mr. Williams said they have noticed elevated run times on
all water systems and said their first indication was a leak out in the system, and they
came up dry on that, and so they started investigating the water plants. Mr. Williams
said it was not like there was water sitting on the ground, but there is evidence of
overflow, he noticed chlorine burn on the grass and then behind the water plant where

the water dumps out into a field there was a puddle of water.

T.J. Wilkerson asked Mr, Williams to check on MLK Blvd. close to the mobile home
on the right, with two water pipes sticking up because there is a ditch there that stays
wet all the time. T.J. Wilkerson said the location was across from the bed and breakfast
and asked them to check that location. Mr. Williams said he would check that location

out.

Jon Bickford said if his math was correct, they lost five million gallons of water, which

is a lot of overflow at 126,000 gallons of water an hour. Mr. Williams said the GST

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 16




high leqvel probe was not working, which has been replaced with pressure sensing

equipment, so they don’t have to worry about the corrosion.

Rebecca Huss asked if Mr. Williams felt like he was off his game here. Mr. Williams
said no. Rebecca Huss said there is a lot of equipment not working and a lot of people
not noticing that five million gallons of water are missing. Mr. Williams said the timing
of this with as dry as it was, the water was soaked up into the ground. Rebecca Huss
said we sit on top of a clay cap so there is no water soaking into the ground quickly
around here. Mr. Williams said he could only report what they found. Rebecca Huss
said she knows, which also goes back to her original question of whether or not they
were on top of their game because his guys are not either out here paying attention,
equipment not working and this is the third month on non-accountability being an issue,
and they are not taking it as seriously as the City is. Mr. Williams said they are taking
it very seriously and he does not know why she would think they are not. Rebecca
Huss said she is starting to feel like we need to light a fire here. Jon Bickford said there

is a lot of water loss.

Mr. Muckleroy stated they were not saying that five million gallons went out into the
ground, they know that was part of the problem, they do not know if that was the whole
problem, Mr. Muckleroy said they are still confident that there is not a major leak in
the system because the evidence of that would show quickly. Mr. Muckleroy said they
did find a small leak, which was the blow off in Terra Vista, Mr, Muckleroy said today
they started looking at the billing side of things to see if there is an issue with that,
which is a legitimate possibility. Mr. Muckleroy said the water might not be lost, it

might just be unaccounted for, they don’t know, they are trying to explore every option.

Jon Bickford said as much and as precious of a resource as water is, and given the
amount of revenue that it generates for the City, which is not trivial and the amount of
expense it takes to get it out of the ground, it has got to be a priority to get to the bottom

of it,

Mayor Countryman asked Mr, Williams if he had an action plan and what is it. Mr,

Williams said they already initiated the action and the repairs at the plant have been

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 17




completed. Jon Bickford said they just found out they do not know if that is it or not.
Mr. Williams said Mr. Muckleroy is meeting with the billing clerk to try and find out
if there is an issue, he has been talking to Mr. Burleigh about some of the usage he is
monitoring with Beacon, going through all the steps to make sure they are not giving
away water. Mr, Williams said they are very carefully monitoring the operations of the
flow as they found the issue at the plant. Mr, Williams said he has spoken to the guys
in the field about being more thorough at the facility and making sure they are on top
of their game because you never know when issues might happen. Mr, Williams said

they are trying to mitigate any type of future issues,

Mr. Williams said they sourced a total this month of 17,46 million gallons, flushing a
total of 1.598 million gallons, and they sold a total of 12.548 million gallons which

brings them to an 81% accountability.

Mr., Williams said this month they had a total of return to the wastewater treatment
plant of 33%.

Jon Bickford asked if they could imagine what might have happened between May and
June or May and July that would cause something wrong with the billing to have
occurred. Mr. Muckleroy said Gulf has nothing to do with the billing. Jon Bickford
said they were at 95 and 96 percent accountability and they dropped down to 89
percent, then they go from 89 to 82 percent and 82 to 81. Jon Bickford said if they
think there is something wrong with the billing, they would imagine then that
something changed between that time, such as with the billing software or how they
are billing or could it have occurred between May and July, where it dropped from 95
down to 82 percent, because that is a pretty big drop and you would expect if it were a
billing issue that some process would have changed or somebody could have updated
software that could have gotten mis figured or something, Mr. Muckleroy said at this
point he did not have an answer. Jon Bickford said when something like this happens
it usually means an outside force effected it. Jon Bickford said he would be thinking
about that and what would cause something significant like this to occur. Rebecca
Huss said residents have been complaining about high bills, so the obvious answer

would be with a big user and if something happened to the upper level of the rate tier,

09/24/19 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 18




Mr. Muckleroy said he did not say they knew there was something wrong with the
billing, it is an option that they are checking. Mr. Muckleroy said they found, on a
fluke, that Spirit of Texas Bank had all three of their meters that had not been put into
the system and they had not received a bill, and in the last two months, they had used
a half a million gallons for irrigation. Mr. Muckleroy said the bill has been corrected
and generated. Mr. Muckleroy said they are checking on the information to see if they

can find anything else.

Engineer’s Report — Mr. Roznovsky, City Engineer, presented his report to City

Council. Mr. Roznovsky said the City has received the check from the surety company
for the Baja Road Project, which included $14,000 in damage reimbursement. Mr,
Roznovsky said the construction did begin so they had a preconstruction meeting and
the contractor moved on site last week. Mr. Roznovsky said they ran into an issue
yesterday when they hit a two-inch waterline that services the school. Mr. Roznovsky
said they had an onsite meeting this afternoon with the owner and the foreman and
crew. Mr. Roznovsky said they repaired the leak in 45 minutes, but they had closed
valves on Baja Street, so Baja was out of water when they thought the valve was open.
Mr. Roznovsky said they had a communication and language barrier, so they are having
the supervisor on site more frequently, who does speak English, so that does not happen
again, Mr. Roznovsky said they will be constructing the waterline tomorrow. Mr.
Roznovsky said the contractor was very frustrated with himself about the incident, and
he is sympathetic to what the residents have been through and it is something he does
not want to repeat. Mr. Roznovsky said this should have been one hour to get the water
back on that turned into a five hour down time. Mayor Countryman said or longer
because she was getting texts at 6:30 p.m. last night and the water had been off since
11:00 am. Rebecca Huss said she heard there were elementary school students
shouting, “give us our water back.” T.J. Wilkerson asked if they put out the door
hangers. Mr, Roznovsky said they have not done that yet; they are getting the schedule
for the Town Hall Meeting and once they have that they will put out the door hangers.
Mr. Roznovsky said if they can’t nail down the schedule by tomorrow, they will go
ahead and put the door hangers out and send a second one. Mayor Countryman said
she felt the door hangers were the most important thing because our residents are seeing

work going on and they have not received any communication, so they are looking as

09/24/19 Councll Meeting Minutes - Page 19




if they are not communicating with them, T.J, Wilkerson asked if they had a date in
mind. Mr. Roznovsky said it was whenever the center is available and what works the
best for the residents, T.J. Wilkerson said next Wednesday evening at 6 p.m. would be
best. Mr. Roznovsky said they would get that scheduled and put the door hangers out
tomorrow. Tom Cronin asked who was doing the door hangers. Mr. Roznovsky said
they will have them prepared and either between them or Public Works they will get
them put out. Jon Bickford said he hoped they were not paying Jones and Carter to
hand door hangers. Mr. Roznovsky said they would give them to Public Works for

distribution,

Mr. Roznovsky said they have received the contracts back from the contractor today
for Phase Il of the Baja Road project, which they will now review and get them
confirmed with the State, then issue the Notice to Proceed. Mr. Roznovsky said they
held a preconstruction meeting for Atkins Creek and the contractor is scheduled to
move onsite next week or the following, with the lead time on the piles for the structure,
so they should be manufactured pretty soon, which they will follow up to see if they

were affected by the weather, but they should be moved onsite in the next week or so.

Mr. Roznovsky said concerning the downtown water improvements, last time there
was a question regarding the Texas Historical Commission and said that came about
because the site is on the register, so when the Water Development Board did their final
clearance it popped up that this was nearby and it was submitted to them for approval,
Mr. Roznovsky said it was not adding anything new to the register, it was already

existing,

Mr. Roznovsky advised the Water Plant 3 improvements are being wrapped up and
they will be scheduling a meeting with the TORQ Committee here in the next few
weeks to review those plans. Mr. Roznovsky said Lift Station 1 replacement project
had the Notice to Proceed issued on September 9, 2019, with the contractor still
working through some submittals. Mr, Roznovsky said the contractor switched up a
vendor that he did not say he was using on the bid for a sub, so once that is corrected,
he should be able to move forward, Mr, Roznovsky said the contract provides that he

has 30-days to demolish the existing Lift Station site and open it up for development,

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 20




which expires on October 9, 2019, so they are continuing to push on the contractor to
get it completed. Mr. Roznovsky said there is a zero-dollar change order for the
project, and the Water Development Board is very specific regarding contract
language, so they had corrections to be made on pages 2 and 3. Mr. Roznovsky said

the contractor has agreed to the changes.

Mr. Roznovsky said the 18-inch sewer extension project is finishing up and there is a
Change Order on that one, which allows for additional bypass pumping time for the
coordination between the two projects and for some pavement repair. Mr., Roznovsky
said originally the developer was going to cut off the top of the manhole and pave over
it and they decided not to do that. Mr. Roznovsky said this was all covered as far as

the deposit and contingency factors.

Mr. Roznovsky said the GLO Project is undergoing environmental clearance for all the
different pieces and the latest update is they should be three to four months, Mr,
Roznovsky said prior to sending survey crews out, they want to be able to do some

clearing before they survey.

Mr. Roznovsky said they returned plan comments for Wendy’s earlier this month. Mr.
Roznovsky said The Shoppes of Montgomery Retail Plaza, west of the driveway that

was installed, is ready for approval for their encroachment agreement.

Mr. Roznovsky said they received the plans for Chick-fil-A, and they are reviewing
them at this time. Mayor Countryman said they are starting to get lots of phone calls
from residents and others and asked what the status of the project is because the
proprietor is under the impression that the City is the bottleneck and that we have been
unresponsive and dragging our feet. Mr. Roznovsky said the first time they received
the plans was on August 13, 2019, and they returned the plans back on August 15,
2019, and the City had not received any revised plans until Friday, September 20, 2019,
so it took them almost a month to submit the revised plans. Mayor Countryman asked
if we are concerned about the Lift Station relocation. Mr. Roznovsky said there are a
couple of different reasons with the land swap portion that needs to be done and they

can do that prior to the Lift Station being completed in March. Mr, Roznovsky said

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 21




with that process underway, they have sent all the legal descriptions and the City
Attorney is working on that information, and then the City will release the site while it
is being bypass pumped and still pump down and keep access to it, and where the Lift
Station is located at the very back of the parking lot, the 18-inch contractor is finishing
up near the building so there is potential that they can be working on the building site
pad while the Lift Station is being demolished, it necessary. Mr. Roznovsky said
according to the contract it is October 9, 2019, so it is two weeks from today that the -
Lift Station should be out of the way. Mr. Roznovsky said he was not sure they would
have approved plans by that time, but they will have comments back from Jones|Carter
this week, Mr, Roznovsky said last time the plans had a good amount of work,
especially with the Flood Plain, but if they have addressed that information, they should
be ready to go. Mrs. Katherine Vu, with Jones|Carter said they received the first round
of plans on August 13, 2019, and they returned comments on August 15, 2019, Mrs,
Vu said they have not received plans until September 20, 2019.

Mr. Roznovsky said they held the one-year warranty inspections for the Villas of Mia
Lago, Section 2 and they have scheduled the one-year warranty inspection for The

Montgomery First Development for this Friday, which is underway.

Mr. Roznovsky said they will conduct the Town Hall Meeting next Wednesday at 6:00
p.m. at the Mount Sinai Church. Mr. Roznovsky said Atkins Creek and TxDOT are
still on schedule for January 2020 for completion of their study on how to fix Atkins
Creek as a whole, so they will continue to follow up on that information. Mr.
Roznovsky said they have returned comments to TxDOT regarding the turn lane and
they responded that they have received the information and reviewed it and it is now

in their acquisition department to start papering up the donation of the right-of-way.

Mr, Roznovsky said they are working on the Design Manual Update and they expect

to have a draft complete by the next Council Meeting.

Financia]l Report — Mr. Tramm presented the information to City Council. Mt. Tramm

said he wanted to mention that on page 35, Account 24334 is titled “Blank”, which was

a category that was put in the budget for backflow income and was routed to a different

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 22




portion of the budget and the naming category remained blank. Mr. Tramm advised
they would get that corrected. Mr. Tramm said he is working with the bookkeeper to
open a separate TexPool Account for money the City owes for tax reimbursements, so
they can take the money out of the main account and segregate, that way if they are
ever asked about the funds it will show the funds are being held and it can be identified
for the Auditor. Rebecca Huss said they had some discussions in length at the MEDC
Meeting, and their CFO Julie Hutchinson is an accomplished accountant and pointed
out that we accrued expenses owed under their 380 Agreement for the Milestone
Agreement last year that was paid this year, and we were accruing expenses this year
that will be paid next year, but we were actually just accounting for the funds this year,
when really they should have done so last year. Rebecca Huss said MEDC decided to
account for last year and this year in this year and begin accruing next year like they
should have been accruing all along. Rebecca Huss said the MEDC had to take a
double hit in the current fiscal year, and said she felt that was the most honest way to
go forward for both entities since they both have the same type of agreements in which
they are accruing expenses but paying them in the next fiscal year for the previous
fiscal year. Rebecca Huss said this has not been correctly accounted for thus far. Jon
Bickford asked if this was a volunteer on the MEDC that is offering financial advice.
Rebecca Huss said it is Juliec Hutchinson, Rebecca Huss said Mrs. Cathy Branco, the
City’s bookkeeper has also confirmed this information. Jon Bickford said if Mrs.
Branco says this is what we need to do, then that is what we need to do, Rebecca Huss
said the City accounts for everything on an accrual basis, even if you don’t have the
cash, the City still must account for the expense as it is earned, regardless if the money
leaves the City. Rebecca Huss said the City owes the sales tax abatement as the quarters
pass and that sales tax number becomes known to the City, Rebecca Huss said
according to the legal agreement, we do not pay it until a certain date, but that date
covers months in the past, which means every quarter that sales become known to us,
we need to put it aside for when that next date comes across and they pay it out of the
account in which we have set the funds aside, rather than just getting the bill and taking
it out of the bank account and bill it when the bill comes in, which is cash accounting
and not how we do things. Mr. Tramm said what happens is because of the agreements,
there is a very long lag time between when they are calculating the reimbursement and

then when it is paid. Mr, Tramm said with the Milestone Agreement they will be doing

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 23




the calculation in one fiscal year and then paying at the beginning of the next fiscal
year. Jon Bickford said he understood what was being done. Rebecca Huss said it
matches the way they do everything else; it is just the way this was put into practice
the way that we do debt accruals and everything else, Jon Bickford said if Mrs. Branco
is on board with this and the Accountant for the City is on board with it, he is good
with it. Rebecca Huss said that means they will have a double whammy this year
because they already paid last year’s bill but accounted for it this year, Jon Bickford
asked how much the expense was. Mr. Tramm said with the Milestone Agreement it
was $76,000, and there is also property tax. Rebecca Huss said what they paid last
year, which was owed for the last fiscal year, was $104,000, so she was guessing it
would be in excess of $175,000 this year because last year was not a full year. Jon
Bickford said only half of that amount is what they would have paid anyway, so
$100,000 is roughly what they would need to set aside. Mr. Tramm said they were not
talking about paying anyone extra money, they were just talking about how they were
accounting for the funds, which will look like they had a large hit this year, but in the
future, they will in line. Rebecca Huss said they will be setting the funds aside as the
tax revenue is coming in and that will be what we owe based on what we receive. Jon

Bickford said he thought they understood what they were doing.

Jon Bickford moved that they accept the Departmental Reports as presented. Rebecca Huss

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously, (4-0)

T.J. Wilkerson asked about the Home Grant houses and asked where they were regarding
starting to build the homes for the people that qualified for the grants. Mr. Tramm said he
knew they have had some discussion on that matter, but he would check into the information
and get back to City Council. Mayor Countryman said there was one particular resident that
she and Ms. Hensley had worked with this week and it is moving in a positive direction and

said Ms. Hensley is doing a lot of work on the case.

. Consideration and possible action regarding 1062 Clepper Street, Montgomery, as submitted

by Larry Jacobs.

My, Tramm advised there were two ways if City Councif wants to proceed with this project,
one being a Special Use Permit, and it would proceed to the Planning and Zoning Commission

for a recommendation. Mr. Tramm said with a Special Use Permit it is like a zoning overlay

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 24




that City Council can put specific conditions on it. Jon Bickford said they decided that they

could do the Special Use Permit. Mr. Foerster advised they could do a Special Use Permit.

Mr. Tramm said the other option is to completely rezone the property from residential to
commercial, but that becomes a permanent change. Jon Bickford said the zoning change would
be without control by City Council. Mr. Tramm said that was correct because they would not
know what the next business would be should the business be sold, but with a Special Use
Permit, City Council would have some control, such as, they might allow it to transfer with the

business, but only with City Council approval, or other conditions,

Mr. Tramm said whatever City Council decides to do tonight, it will be going through the
Planning and Zoning Commission and is a lengthy process to complete, Rebecca Huss said
she has stated before that she is very opposed to the unrestricted move to commercial because
she did not feel all the permitted commercial uses are appropriate for the Historic Business
District. Rebecca Huss said barring the lack of Historic Commercial designation in the City,

she feels the only way for her would be under a Special Use Permit.

Jon Bickford asked if there was a Special Use Permit, would they have to declare the buildings
that are there are indeed portable and could not be on a permanent foundation. Mr. Foerster
said City Council could put any conditions they want on the construction and use of propetty
under the Special Use Permit. Mr. Foerster said they could place appropriate conditions and if
those conditions are violated, City Council has the authority, per the Statute and the 98-27 of
the Code of Ordinances to revoke the Special Use Permit. Jon Bickford asked what would
happen if they revoked the Special Use Permit, Mr. Foerster said the property would go back
to being strictly residential. Jon Bickford asked what would happen with whatever is located
on the property and what would their recourse be. Mr, Foerster said City Council could make
that a condition of the Special Use Permit that there would be certain obligations by the owner
to move the buildings or come to City Council for authority to use them for some other purpose.
Jon Bickford said looking at the worst case scenario, they authorize the Special Use Permit,
they have the temporary buildings on it, and they decide it is a bad business and it goes
bankrupt, then when would City Council revoke the Special Use Permit, because he does not
want the buildings sitting there getting overgrown with the homes sitting on it. Jon Bickford

asked what recourse they would have to remove the buildings. Mr. Foerster said if his company

09/24/19 Councll Meeting Minutes - Page 25




went bankrupt, he might not have the resources to move the buildings. Jon Bickford said
exactly his point, so guess who would have to pay to move the buildings, it would be the City
if they wanted to do something about it. Jon Bickford said his concern is that it is so close to
the entrance to Buffalo Springs and the Historic District, so they need tight controls and he is
by no means interested in rezoning the property to commercial, but thought he could support a
Special Use Permit as long as it is very tightly written. Mr. Foerster said he thought those were
the instructions they are giving to the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission that
are here tonight, and that you are open to it, but you are going to be cautious and you are asking

them to contemplate the consequences of what can happen.

Jon Bickford said he thought it was a wonderful idea, but he is just nervous about where it is
just in case. Rebecca Huss said the City has the right to require mowing and things like that,
but uitimately if somebody does not pay their taxes, the property goes up for auction or if they
don’t comply they can fine, but ultimately if something is an attractive location it has a residual
value, so with the assets if they are portable, people will sell them. Jon Bickford said at the
end of the day you have a piece of residential property that you are granting a Special Use
Permit for that has things on it, and he wants to know what they do to preserve downtown
Montgomery Historic District and an entrance to a very nice neighborhood in Montgomery,
whose property owners pay a lot of taxes. Rebecca Huss asked if they remembered what the
property looked like a few years ago when they had the dilapidated building on it, Jon Bickford
said the building was not all the way back in Buffalo Springs like it will be when the clearing

gets done. Rebecca Huss said there will be a big buffer. Jon Bickford said it was only 25 feet.

Mr, Foerster said City Council was not planning to approve it, all they were doing was deciding
as to whether they want to consider the Planning and Zoning Commission to ook at rezoning,
issuing a Special Use Permit or not to move forward at all. Mr. Tramm said the item will still

have to come back to City Council for final approval.

T.J. Wilkerson asked if the property was in the Historic District. Mr, Roznovsky advised the
property was just outside the Historic District. Mayor Countryman asked if the Historic
District stops at Clepper Street, Mr. Roznovsky said yes. Jon Bickford said if they rezone the

property, they have no control over the usage, and once you go to commercial you can’t go

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 26




back. Rebecca Huss said she thought they all agreed with that, but with the Special Use Permit

it would give City Council a lot of comfort.

Tom Cronin moved that City Council refer a Special Use Permit to City Staff to proceed with
drafting a Special Use Permit and begin the Planning and Zoning Commission process of
making a recommendation to City Council for the Special Use Permit. Rebecca Huss seconded

the motion.

Discussion; Jon Bickford asked if they want staff to proceed with drafting a permit before they
get feedback from the Planning and Zoning Commission. Rebecca Huss said she thought the
Planning and Zoning Commission would be the ones doing the heavy lifting on this item. T.J.
Wilkerson asked if the Special Use Permit is done, they can’t change the use to commercial.
Jon Bickford said that was correct it would stay residential and allows Special Use rules and
regulations, which can be made non-transferrable so if the property is ever sold, they can
revoke the Special Use Permit and protect that piece of property. Jon Bickford said if Mr.
Foerster is clear that they can do that because he thought they could not. Mr. Foerster said in
terms of the process, typically what City Council would want to do, as Tom Cronin suggested,
is have staff work up something the Planning and Zoning Commission can look at and modify
per their thoughts., Mr, Foerster said he did not find any problem with the motion as it was
presented by Tom Cronin. Tom Cronin asked if the motion would require 100% since John
Champagne is not present. Jon Bickford said that is only if they are proposing rezoning, so
they do not have to have a 4/5 vote. Mr. Tramm said that it is only for the ultimate approval

of the Special Use Permit when it comes back before City Council.

T.J. Wilkerson asked if the Special Use Permit would just narrow it down to whatever Mr.
Jacobs has planned. Jon Bickford said it would be whatever Mr. Jacobs has planned and what
the City Council accepts for the future of that property, should something occur, Jon Bickford
said if Mr, Jacobs decides to sell the property, he would propose they have a clause that states
the Special Use Permit won’t be carried forward without City Council approval, so they bave
some stop gaps in the Permit to have the issue readdressed. Rebecca Huss said also given what
has been stated, it must be durable and well maintained and those things will be codified in the
Special Use Permit and would be an important component of its approval. Jon Bickford said

what has been presented looks great and he would assume it is going to be taken care of and

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 27




1.

look great, but we must protect the City in case there is ever a change in ownership. Mr.
Foerster said if Mr. Jacobs was to violate his Special Use Permit, City Council could come
back as the judge and jury and terminate the Special Use Permit. Jon Bickford said he just
wants to know what they do after they terminate the Special Use Permit, and what do they do
with those little buildings. Mr. Foerster said Mr. Jacobs will have a piece of property with
houses on it that he can’t use for revenue, Jon Bickford said the City will have a piece of
property that the owner says if he can’t use it then he won’t cut the grass anymore, so his
question is, in the Special Use Permit can that be what his recourse is if that occurs.

Jon Bickford asked Mr. Jacobs about the rental duration for the houses, Mr, Jacobs said he
saw it as one to two-day rental as the average stay, people coming to town to visit. Jon Bickford
asked that he give some feedback to the Planning and Zoning Commission to give a window
for the stay duration and he would want to make sure that those are not long term rentals, and

they don’t become apartments, which he knows is not Mr. Jacobs intent.

Mz, Perez satd he did not mind if the Special Use Permit was transferrable if the Special Use
Permit had restrictions on the usage, and if the property does not revert to commercial and then
turn into a gas station down the road. Jon Bickford said there were other residents of Buffalo
Springs that are very concerned about this matter. Rebecca Huss said ultimately that should
be City Council’s decision for what is best for the City. Rebecca Huss said the transfer of the

property should be up to City Council,

The motion carried with 3-Aye votes and 1-Nay vote by T.J. Wilkerson. (3-1)

Mr. Jacobs invited anybody to come and see him at his office to ask him questions stating he

was an open book.

Consideration and possible action regarding the Replat for The Shoppes at Montgomery,

Section 2.

Rebecca Huss asked about some of the acronyms on the plat. The City Engineer reviewed the
information stating the SCE was the Sanitary Control Easement and the SS was the Sanitary
Sewer Easement. Rebecca Huss said in the introductory paragraph the acronyms should be

defined.

09/24/19 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 28




Jon Bickford asked why they are replatting the property. Mr. Roznovsky said the reason they
are replatting is the use and how they are going to divide the property since the development
has changed. Mr. Roznovsky said they have added six new reserves along SH 105 because the
use is smaller type businesses, Mr, Roznovsky said it was also driven by the first one, Reserve
H, which is the closest to the access road and in the middle of the drawing, which is where they
are putting the retail center and once they drew up the footprint it did not fit on the existing
Reserve that they had, so they modified it. Mr. Roznovsky said they also added the waterline
easement that goes through the property and back around Buffalo Springs in order to create a
waterline loop and provide service to the Reserve in the rear. Mr. Roznovsky said there was a
release of a dead-end utility that was an electric easement that goes into Reserve H. Mr,
Roznovsky said when they initially platted the property, not knowing exactly what they were
going to do with the property, they now have better ideas and are starting to move forward and

said the property will remain commercial,

Rebecca Huss moved to replat The Shoppes at Montgomery, Section 2 as presented. Jon

Bickford seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

. Consideration and possible action regarding an Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement

with First Hartford Realty Corporation for a private storm sewer in a public sanitary sewer

casement.

Mr. Tramm said this is to allow the storm sewer line to cross through the sanitary sewer
easement on the property. Mr. Tramm said the property owner understands that if there is any
need for maintenance repairs, they must take care of their line. Rebecca Huss asked if their
storm sewer line crosses over existing sanitary sewer lines. Mr. Roznovsky said yes, it does,
it is over the new 18-inch sanitary sewer, which is extremely deep. Jon Bickford asked if their
line would be over the top of the City’s line. Mr. Roznovsky said yes it would be about 15-
feet above our line. Rebecca Huss asked to confirm that there was no chance for erosion or
1&1. Mr. Roznovsky said typically the City is okay with just a 12-inch clearance between the
fines, but they have 15,7 feet.

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 29




Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement for the Storm
Sewer Encroachment between the City of Montgomery and First Hartford Realty Corporation,

as presented. Jon Bickford seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

Tom Cronin stepped out of the meeting during the vote and returned to the meeting following

the vote,

13. Consideration and possible action regarding an Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement for

Monument Signage by and between the City of Montgomery and CBH Properties

Montgomery, LLC (Christian Brothers Automotive) for a monument sign within a public

utility easement,

Mr, Tramm said this Agreement would allow the monument sign to be placed over the City’s
utility easement and they understand in the event that there is a need for them to relocate the

sign or repairs to the sign due to becoming damaged if the City is doing work to the easement

they are responsible for all repairs and maintenance to the sign.

Jon Bickford asked if they are putting the sign in the City’s easement to put it closer to the
road. Mr. Tramm said it has to do with the placement of the property and there are other signs
out in the utility easement, which required these types of agreements, Jon Bickford asked if
this one was out further. Mr. Tramm said that was not his understanding, he undetstood it was
in line with the other signs. Mr. Roznovsky said it would be in line with the Procore sign, which
is between CareNow and the Car Wash. Mr. Roznovsky said they will still need to come in

for a sign permit.

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement Monument
Signage by and between the City of Montgomery and CBH Properties Montgomery, LLC
(Christian Brothers Automotive) as presented. Tom Cronin seconded the motion, the motion

carried unanimously. (4-0)

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or

for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 30



qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real

roperty), 551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation

rggarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)

of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.

14. Adjourn_into Closed Executive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act,

Chapter 551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the

following:
a) Section 551.071 — Consultation with City Attorney regarding pending claims and

contracts: and

b) Section 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)

regarding Town Creek Crossing,

Mayor Countryman adjourned into Executive Session at 8:05 p.m,

15. Reconvene into Open Session.

Mayor Countryman reconvened into Open Session at 8:31 p.m.

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:

16. Consideration and possible action regarding item(s) listed under Executive Session,

There was no action taken.

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect, 551.042 the Mavor and Council Members may inquire about

a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy

or_a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or

decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.
Rebecca Huss stated that under the purchase of the land at Wade Street, she believed City Council

committed to changing the name of Wade Street to L..A. Washington Street. Rebecca Huss advised
the elder Mr. Washington has passed away and was buried two weeks ago and she felt the City had
missed the moment to do the change, but it does not mean the City should not follow through on our

promise and rename Wade Street to LA, Washington Street, Rebecca Huss said the younger Mr.

09/24/19 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 31
















STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY §

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION SUBMITTING NOMINEE(S) AS CANDIDATE(S) FOR THE
ELECTION OF THE MONTGOMERY CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT’S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS-2020-2021 TERM.

WHEREAS, the City of Montgomery of Montgomery County Texas has been certified
by the Chief Appraiser of the Montgomery Central Appraisal District as being eligible and
entitled to nominate candidates to be placed on the county-wide ballot for the Montgomery
Central Appraisal District’s Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered such candidates;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Montgomery
hereby nominates to the Montgomery Central Appraisat District’s Board of Directors the
following candidate(s).

PASSED AND APPROVED this the , 2019,
s\ Title

ATTEST:

s\Title

2-Co ISD City Resolution-Nominate.doc
















RESOLUTION NO., 2019-

RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL FORTHE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
DESIGNATING THE COURIER NEWSPAPER AS THE OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER FOR
THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR
TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT

WHEREAS, the City of Montgomery is required to adopt an official municipal newspaper at the
beginning of each fiscal year, as per Chapter 52.004 of the Texas Local Government Code; and

WHEREAS, the Courier, a newspaper in Montgomery County has a large circulation, is printed
daily, and meets the statutory requirements for official newspapers.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF
MONTGOMERY, TEXAS THAT:

Section 1: The City Council designated the Courier as the City of Montgomery's official
newspaper for fiscal year 2019-2020.

Section 2;: The City of Montgomery shall publish in the Conroe Courier each ordinance caption,
public notice or other matter required by law or ordinance to be published.

Section 3: The City Council authorizes the City Administrator to execute a contact for services
to be provided by the Courier.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of October 2019.

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

Sara Countryman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED:

Larry L. Foerster, City Attorney










ANALYSIS OF FEASIBILITY FOR
THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY
TO PROVIDE SANITARY SEWER SERVICE
TO A PROPOSED 44.201-ACRE DEVELOPMENT
“WEST LAKES”

October 2019



1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400

JONES CARTER The Woodlands, Texas 77380
Tel: 281.363.4039

Fax: 281.363.3459

www.jonescarter.com

October 2, 2019

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356

Re: Proposed 44.201-Acre Single-Family Development Feasibility Study
West Lakes Development (Dev. No. 1904)
City of Montgomery ETJ

Dear Mayor and Council:

On June 19, 2019, Promocon USA, LLC (the “Developer”) submitted an application for utility service of
lands situated in the western portion of the City of Montgomery (the “City”). On August 13, 2019, the
City Council authorized the preparation of a Utility and Economic Feasibility Study. We are pleased to
present this analysis of the feasibility for the City to provide sanitary sewer service to the referenced
44.201-acre tract (the “Tract”). The purpose of the feasibility is to determine whether sanitary sewer
system capacity is available, to determine how the existing public utilities will need to be upgraded or
extended to serve the Tract, to examine the development’s impact on drainage and traffic, and to offer
clarity on the potential financial impact of the development.

General

This undeveloped Tract is located along Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road, south of its intersection with Old
Plantersville Road. The entirety of the tract is located within the City’s current Extraterritorial
Jurisdiction (“ETJ”), therefore the Tract will require annexation prior to receiving service. An exhibit
displaying the Tract boundary is enclosed as Appendix A. Upon annexation, the Tract will be zoned R-1.

A preliminary land plan is enclosed as Appendix B, which indicates the Developer intends to construct a
residential community with public utilities, public streets, and public drainage consisting of
approximately 168 single-family homes situated on lots approximately 50-feet in width. All lots are
planned to be approximately 120-feet deep. The development will require variances from the minimum
lot width requirement of 75 feet (Code of Ordinances Sec. 78-88c) and lot size requirement of 9,000
square feet (Code of Ordinances Sec. 78-88e). It is important to note that according to the City’s Future
Land Use Plan, the Tract is planned to be low-density residential, which means lots greater than or equal
to the 9,000 square foot requirement.

The Developer estimates the average home sale price to be approximately $200,000 each. Construction
and build out of the development is planned to occur over approximately 3 years. The estimates
included in this feasibility are based on the anticipated land use provided by the Developer. The final
land plan may affect the estimated costs and revenues associated with the development.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



JONES|CARTER

City of Montgomery

44.201-Acre West Lakes Feasibility
Page 2

October 2, 2019

Water Production and Distribution

The Tract is located within the Dobbin-Plantersville Water Supply Company (“DPWSC”) Certificate of
Convenience and Necessity (“CCN”) service area. As such, the tract will receive water service from
DPWSC. The Developer will need to provide written confirmation from DPWSC that sufficient water
supply capacity is available to serve the Tract and to meet TCEQ fire flow requirements prior to receiving
construction plan approval from the City. Additional feasibility analysis may be required if DPWSC does
not have sufficient capacity to serve the Tract. The Developer is responsible for providing engineered
plans and specifications for the water distribution system interior to the development to the City
Engineer for review and approval prior to commencing construction, and to obtain all required Planning
and Zoning Commission, City Council, and development approvals and permits. Upon completion of
construction the City will not take ownership of the public water system.

Sanitary Sewer Collection and Treatment

The City’s existing wastewater facilities consist of 14 public lift stations, four semi-public lift stations, and
two wastewater treatment plants (one of which is currently decommissioned). The Stewart Creek
wastewater treatment plant (TPDES Permit No. WQ0011521001) has a permitted capacity of 400,000
gpd. The current ADF at the Stewart Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant is approximately 151,000 gpd.

Inclusive of existing connections and platted developments which are in design or under construction,
the City has committed approximately 430,000 gpd or 108% of existing permitted capacity. A current
summary of Development Acreages & Service Demands is enclosed in Appendix C.

Based upon the City’s historical usage for similar types of development, the Tract’s estimated sanitary
sewer capacity requirement is approximately 33,600 gpd (1,008,000 gallons per month).

The TCEQ requires the City to initiate design of a wastewater treatment capacity expansion when the
ADF exceeds 75% of the City’s 400,000 gpd permitted capacity for 3 consecutive months. The ADF for
the City, including this Tract and other tracts under design/feasibility, is not expected to exceed 75% of
the permitted capacity (300,000 gpd) until 2023. Additionally, the TCEQ requires the commencement of
the construction phase of the expansion after 3 consecutive months of ADF exceeding 90% of the
permitted capacity (360,000 gpd). This is not expected to occur within the next 5 years. As the projects
shown in Appendix C achieve full development, the City should be prepared to initiate planning for
additional treatment capacity.

Given the Tract’s location relative to the City’s existing sanitary sewer facilities, a new public lift station
and force main will need to be constructed to serve the Tract. The Tract will be served by extending
gravity sanitary sewer lines to the proposed lift station. The lift station pumps will initially be sized to
serve only the Tract while the wet well will be sized to serve approximately 75,000 gpd. This will allow

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



JONES|CARTER

City of Montgomery

44.201-Acre West Lakes Feasibility
Page 3

October 2, 2019

the pumping capacity to be expanded to serve additional undeveloped property along Old Dobbin-
Plantersville Road, south of Old Plantersville Road and SH-105. The lift station site will need to be sized
to provide sufficient room for both the initial wet well and an additional wet well sized for the ultimate
flow from the area. The Developer will be responsible for dedicating the necessary lift station site and
easements to the City.

The lift station will convey flow via a new public force main extending to Lift Station No. 5. The force
main will be sized for this development only, as a larger diameter line would not meet TCEQ minimum
velocities. In the future when additional connections are made, the force main will also need to be
upsized. There is currently sufficient capacity in Lift Station No. 5 to serve its existing connections,
including currently vacant lots, and the Tract. A preliminary layout of the improvements can be found in
Appendix D, and construction cost estimates for the lift station and force main can be found in Appendix
E. The alignment and cost of the improvements are subject to change based on the final land plan of the
proposed development. The developer will be responsible for all costs associated with the
improvements required to serve the Tract and all required easements.

The estimated cost for the proposed lift station, including the required sanitary sewer force main
extension, is $769,000 including contingencies and engineering. This cost also includes estimated
easement acquisition costs and estimated railroad and pipeline easement crossing fees.

The ultimate alignment of sanitary sewer lines interior to the Tract will depend on the final land plan of
the development. The Developer will also be required to provide gravity sanitary sewer line stub outs for
future extension to neighboring properties. These sanitary sewer lines will need to be placed in public
utility easements located along public ROW or placed within public ROW interior to the development
and constructed per all applicable City and TCEQ design criteria. The Developer will be responsible for all
costs associated with easement acquisitions and recordation.

The Developer is responsible for providing engineered plans and specifications for the sanitary sewer
conveyance system interior to the development to the City Engineer for review and approval prior to
commencing construction, and to obtain all required Planning and Zoning Commission, City Council, and
development approvals and permits.

Drainage

The onsite storm sewer system will be designated public and accepted by the City upon completion of
the development. The proposed detention pond will be private and will require maintenance and
upkeep by a Property Owners Association or similar entity. All drainage and detention improvements
must be designed per the City’s Code of Ordinances requiring compliance with the City’s floodplain
regulations and all applicable Montgomery County Drainage Criteria Manual Standards. Failure to design

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



JONES|CARTER

City of Montgomery

44.201-Acre West Lakes Feasibility
Page 4

October 2, 2019

and construct the drainage and detention facilities per Montgomery County criteria may jeopardize
eligibility for acceptance by the City.

The Developer is responsible for providing engineered plans and specifications for the drainage and
detention system interior to the development to the City Engineer for review and approval prior to
commencing construction, and to obtain all required Planning and Zoning Commission, City Council, and
development approvals and permits. The Developer will also be required to perform and submit a
drainage study showing the development’s impact on the drainage downstream of the Tract and on
adjacent properties. The drainage study must be submitted to the City for review and approval prior to
approval of construction plans.

Paving and Traffic

Based on the number of single-family lots proposed, we estimate the development will generate
approximately 1,676 total trips per day, in and out combined, with 124 trips at AM peak hour traffic and
167 trips at PM peak hour traffic. The Developer will need to work with Montgomery County to
determine the impact of the additional traffic flow on Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road, as well as whether
any improvements to the road are required to accommodate the development.

Per the City’s Major Thoroughfare Plan, there is a proposed major thoroughfare, the south loop of Lone
Star Parkway, that runs through the northeast corner of the Tract as shown on Appendix A. The
thoroughfare would be required to have a 180-foot-wide right-of-way. The preliminary land plan
included as Appendix B will need to be revised to account for the required right-of-way width.

Any paving improvements must be designed per the City’s design criteria. The Developer is responsible
for providing engineered plans and specifications for the paving design to the City Engineer for review
and approval prior to commencing construction, and to obtain all required Planning and Zoning
Commission, City Council, and development approvals and permits.

Development Costs

The Developer will need to engineer and construct on-site and off-site sanitary sewer, paving, drainage,
and detention facilities to serve the proposed Tract.

The Developer will also need to pay wastewater impact fees to the City. The impact fees will be assessed
at the time of recordation of the final plat and collected prior to receiving a sanitary sewer tap. Enclosed
as Appendix F is Table 1.1 of the 2017 Revisions to the Montgomery Impact Fee Analysis Report. The
estimated ADF provided by the Developer requires the equivalent use of one-hundred and sixty-eight
5/8-inch water meters per the table.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



JONES|CARTER

City of Montgomery

44.201-Acre West Lakes Feasibility
Page 5

October 2, 2019

An escrow agreement has been entered into between the Developer and the City and funds have been
deposited to cover the cost of this feasibility study and initial coordination with the Developer. Due to
the size and potential phasing of the full development, providing a definitive estimate of the total
escrow amount required is difficult. If the development was to be constructed in one phase, with a
construction period of performance of approximately 8 months, an estimated additional $74,000 would
be required to cover the City’s estimated expenses for the development, which include administrative
costs, legal fees, plan reviews, developer and construction coordination, and construction inspection.
We recommend that the fees be recalculated and phased after a decision is made on the phasing of the
project. The City will require that there be a positive balance in the account to continue work on the
development until a phasing decision is made.

Below is a summary of the estimated cost associated with the development:

Estimated Costs:

e Lift Station S 410,000
e Force Main S 359,000
e Escrow Account S 74,000
e Wastewater Impact Fee S 422,184

Subtotal $1,265,184

The estimate is based on the projected wastewater usage provided by the developer. The actual costs
will depend on the final land plan, final design, and actual construction costs. The estimated costs for
the proposed lift station and force main are the total project costs and do not assume the terms of any
cost sharing agreement entered into with the City.

Financial Feasibility

The Developer projects the home sales prices to be approximately $200,000. The Developer estimates
the total assessed value (A.V.) at full development to be approximately $33,600,000. Based on the
estimated total A.V. and assuming 95% collection, the development would generate approximately
$60,000 per year in debt service revenue based on the City’s $0.1888/5$100 valuation debt service tax
rate, and approximately $68,000 per year in operations and maintenance revenue based on the City’s
$0.2112/$100 valuation Operations & Maintenance (O&M) tax rate.

This report is our engineering evaluation of the funds required to complete the anticipated future
capital improvements for this Tract and of the potential increase in tax revenue to the City. This report is
not intended to be used for issuance of municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal
securities. The City’s Financial Advisor(s) can address potential recommendations related to the issuance
of municipal financial products or issuance of municipal securities.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100






Appendix A
Proposed 44.201-Acre West Lakes Development

Boundary & Thoroughfare Map

|JEINES CARTER

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



S3,100d

[HONVHE[ONIHCS)

O

W
o
OO

LIV AN

$ SLANTERSVILLE

447201-AcyWest]
('akes]Development]

HIGH WAV O]

® 2N ERS V)

'

T CRES

SENENES SV

POWELL

%

ad3dd3HS

% HOUSTON %

% WORSHAM

LTOUISA!

Jidlydd %

POND,

6N

VICINITY MAP

Scale: 1 inch equals 10 miles

LEGEND
D West Lakes Boundary

D City of Montgomery City Limits
City ETJ
[ ] MCAD Property Info

TCEQ Water CCN
P Dobbin Plantersville WSC

e Fxisting Thoroughfare
@® @ Proposed Thoroughfare
e Fxisting Collector

® @® Proposed Collector

44.201-AC WEST
LAKES DEVELOPMENT

City of Montgomery
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

0 500 1,000 N
| ] ]

Feet W E
linch equals 1,000 feet S

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary. No express warranties are made by
Jones| Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

User Name: JLG2

Date: 9/12/2019

Project Number: W5841-1904-00

Path: \\jonescarter.corp\cfs\DA\VOL_4\ROOT\OFFICE\Personal\JLG\Houston\ABennett\W5841-1904-00\West Lakes Development Boundary Map.mxd



Appendix B
Proposed 44.201-Acre West Lakes Development

Preliminary Site Plan

.JEINES CARTER

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



OLD DOBBIN - PLANTERSVILLE RD

1°09L

/
RESIDENTIAL LOTS: 168
POND: 4.90 acres
' ' R B A N I K A 26022 8udde Rd 44 ACRE-OLD DOBBIN-PLANTERSVILLERD.  spiisiosuoneniic. | # 0000000000
Suite A 301. montgomery, t e x a s | Scale:

CONS T IROUOC T 1o

Spring Tx 77380

P. 346 331 6927

Residential Use project.

Old Dobbin-Plantersville Rd. Montgomery, TX. 77316.

26022 Budde Rd
Suite A-301
The Woodlands Tx 77380

1:1000 on 36"x24"

Arch and Urban design:
Urbanika. - LT

Date: 06/13/2019




Appendix C
Proposed 44.201-Acre West Lakes Development

Updated Development Acreages & Service Demands

|JEINES CARTER

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



City of Montgomery, Texas
Developer Acreages Service Demands (Updated October 2, 2019)

10/2/2019
Page 1 of 3

Development Info & Capacities

Water Wastewater Projected Additional Connections and Flow
Current Ultimate Current
Connections | Connections Actual Ultimate Current Ultimate 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Single Family 225 250 150 200
Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections | GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary
Single Family

Buffalo Crossing 1 13 225 3,250 150 2,600 1 225 150 2 450 300 2 450 300 2 450 300 2 450 300
Buffalo Springs, Section 1 24 24 5,400 6,000 3,600 4,800 - - - - - - - - - -
Buffalo Springs, Section 2 59 64 13,275 16,000 8,850 12,800 2 450 300 2 450 300 1 225 150 - - - -
Estates of Mia Lago, Section 1 4 27 900 6,750 1 225 2 450 3 675 3 675 3 675
FM 149 Corridor 20 25 4,500 6,250 3,000 5,000 - - 1 225 150 1 225 150 1 225 150 1 225 150
Simonton and Lawson 13 23 2,925 5,750 1,950 4,600 - - - - 1 225 150 - - 1 225 150
Martin Luther King 47 55 10,575 13,750 7,050 11,000 1 225 150 - - 1 225 150 - - 1 225 150
Baja Road 7 11 1,575 2,750 1,050 2,200 - - 1 225 150 - - 1 225 150 - -
Community Center Drive 3 3 675 750 450 600 - - - - - - - - - -
Community Center Drive (Water Only) 8 10 1,800 2,500 - - - - 1 225 150 - - - - 1 225 150
Lake Creek Landing 15 15 3,375 3,750 2,250 3,000 - - - - - - - - - -
Gulf Coast Estates, Section 2 - 3 - 750 - 600 1 225 150 1 225 150 1 225 150 - - - -
Lake Creek Village, Section 1 34 37 7,650 9,250 5,100 7,400 2 450 300 1 225 150 - - - - - -
Lake Creek Village, Section 2 33 45 7,425 11,250 4,950 9,000 - - - 6 1,350 900 6 1,350 900 - - - - -
Estates of Lake Creek Village 6 22 1,350 5,500 900 4,400 5 1,125 750 7 1,575 1,050 2 450 300 - - - -
Lone Star Estates 10 10 2,250 2,500 1,500 2,000 - - - - - - - - - -
Hills of Town Creek, Section 2 41 51 9,225 12,750 6,150 10,200 3 675 450 7 1,575 1,050 - - - - - -
Hills of Town Creek, Section 3 3 49 675 12,250 450 9,800 5 1,125 750 8 1,800 1,200 8 1,800 1,200 8 1,800 1,200 7 1,575 1,050
Historic/Downtown 129 150 29,025 37,500 19,350 30,000 2 450 300 2 450 300 2 450 300 2 450 300 2 450 300
Terra Vista Section 1 24 61 5,400 15,250 3,600 12,200 1 225 150 10 2,250 1,500 10 2,250 1,500 10 2,250 1,500 6 1,350 900
Villas of Mia Lago Section 1 14 14 3,150 3,500 2,100 2,800 - - - - - - - - - -
Villas of Mia Lago Section 2 27 42 6,075 10,500 4,050 8,400 - - - 10 2,250 1,500 5 1,125 750 - - - -
Waterstone, Section 1 39 53 8,775 13,250 5,850 10,600 3 675 450 4 900 600 4 900 600 - - - -
Waterstone, Section 2 4 89 900 22,250 600 17,800 4 900 600 4 900 600 4 900 600 10 2,250 1,500 10 2,250 1,500
Gary Hammons 1 1 225 250 150 200
Mobile Home Park (connection) 29 29 4,000 4,000 3,300 3,300
City Hall 1 1 1,070 1,070 890 890
Community Center 1 1 200 200 150 150
Buffalo Spring Plant 1 1 360 360 250 250
Cedar Brake Park Restrooms 1 1 200 200 150 150
Fernland Park 1 1 200 200 150 150
Homecoming Park Restrooms 1 1 200 200 150 150
Water Plant No. 3 1 1 4,000 4,000 2,000 2,000
West Side at the Park 7 11 1,575 2,750 1,050 2,200 2 450 300 1 225 150 - - - - - -

Subtotal 609 944 139,155 237,230 91,190 181,240 33 7,425 4,800 70 15,750 10,200 51 11,475 7,200 37 8,325 5,100 34 7,650 4,650
Commercial Platted and Existing
Buffalo Run, Section 1 1 6 1,000 10,000 650 6,500 - - - - - 1 1,800 1,170 - - - 1 3,300 2,700
Longview Greens Miniature Golf 1 1 1,200 1,200 780 780
Summit Business Park, Phase 1 3 6 1,800 6,000 1,170 3,900 - - 1 1,400 910 1 1,400 910 - -
Prestige Storage (SBP Res. D) 1 1 360 360 234 234
McCoy's 1 1 360 360 234 234
McCoy's Reserves B, C, & D - 3 - 11,000 - 7,150 - - - - 1 3,667 2,383 - - 1 3,600 3,000
Pizza Shack 1 1 4,000 4,000 2,600 2,600
Virgin Development Tract 3 3 1,500 1,500 975 975
KenRoc (Montgomery First) - 3 - 12,000 - 7,800 - - - 1 4,000 2,600 1 4,000 2,600 - -
Dusty's Car Wash 1 1 20,000 20,000 13,000 13,000
ProCore Developments 1 1 360 360 234 234
Wendy's - 1 - 1,500 - 975 - - 1 1,500 975 - - - -
Madsen and Richards 1 1 405 405 263 263
Kroger 2 2 9,000 9,000 5,850 5,850
Burger King 1 1 1,250 1,250 813 813
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. | (Reserve B) 1 1 4,500 4,500 2,925 2,925
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. | (Reserve A2) - 1 - 360 - 234 - - 1 360 234 - - - -
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. | (Reserve E) - 1 - 3,000 - 1,950 - - 1 3,000 1,950 - - - -
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. | (Reserve D) - 1 - 6,000 - 3,900 - - - - 1 6,000 3,900 - -
Spirit of Texas Bank - 1 - 500 - 325 1 500 325 - - - - - -
Heritage Place 1 1 360 1,200 234 780 - - - - - - - -
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. 2 - 4 - 25,000 - 16,250 - - 1 6,250 4,063 1 6,250 4,063 1 6,250 4,063 1 7,500 6,250
BlueWave Car Wash 1 1 4,000 4,000 2,600 2,600
Brookshire Brothers 2 2 1,500 1,500 975 975
Ransoms 1 1 1,500 1,500 975 975
Heritage Medical Center 1 1 360 1,200 234 780
Lone Star Pkwy Office Building 2 2 720 720 468 468
Old Iron Work 1 1 300 300 195 195
Apache Machine Shop 1 1 360 360 234 234
Montgomery Community Center (lone Star) 1 1 360 360 234 234
Jim's Hardware 1 1 200 200 130 130
Town Creek Storage 1 1 360 360 234 234
Lake Creek Village 3 Commercial - 5 - 30,000 - 19,500 - - 1 6,000 3,900 1 6,000 3,900 1 6,000 3,900 1 6,000 4,800
Waterstone Commercial Reserve A 1 10 650 16,000 423 10,400 - - 1 1,706 1,109 1 1,706 1,109 1 1,706 1,109 1 1,500 1,250

K:\W5841\W5841-1904-00 West Lakes Single-Family Development\2 Design Phase\Reports\Appendices\C\Water and Wastewater Usages and Projections 10.02.19




City of Montgomery, Texas

Developer Acreages Service Demands (Updated October 2, 2019)

10/2/2019
Page 2 of 3

Development Info & Capacities

Water Wastewater Projected Additional Connections and Flow
Current Ultimate Current
Connections | Connections Actual Ultimate Current Ultimate 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Single Family 225 250 150 200
Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections | GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary
Commercial Platted and Existing (cont.)
Waterstone Commercial Reserve B 1 1 360 4,300 234 2,795
Waterstone Commercial Reserve C (State Farm) 1 1 405 405 263 263
Waterstone Commercial Reserve D - 1 - 4,000 - 2,600 - - 1 4,000 2,600 - - - -
The Montgomery Shoppes - 15 - 30,000 - 19,500 2 4,000 2,600 2 4,000 2,600 2 4,000 2,600 2 4,000 2,600 2 4,000 3,000
Burger Fresh 1 1 400 400 260 260
Churches 12 12 3,000 3,000 1,950 1,950
Miscellaneous Commercial 79 79 28,000 28,000 18,200 18,200
Subtotal 126 179 88,570 246,100 57,571 159,965 3 4,500 2,925 11 32,216 20,940 10 34,822 22,634 5 17,956 11,671 7 25,900 21,000
Multi Family
Heritage Plaza (Units) 80 208 8,800 22,880 5,720 14,872 20 2,200 1,100 20 2,200 1,100 20 2,200 1,100 20 2,200 1,100
Town Creek Village, Phase | (Units) 152 152 24,000 26,500 12,000 13,250
Montgomery Supported Housing 14 14 2,300 2,300 1,150 1,150
Live Oak Assisted Living 1 1 2,300 2,300 1,150 1,150
Subtotal 247 375 37,400 53,980 20,020 30,422 20 2,200 1,100 20 2,200 1,100 20 2,200 1,100 20 2,200 1,100 - - -
Institutional (Schools, City, Church)
MISD Athletic Complex 2 2 6,800 6,800 3,400 3,400
MISD High School Complex 2 2 29,000 29,000 14,500 14,500
MISD Warehouse (105/Clepper) 1 1 360 1,500 250 750
Bus Barn 1 1 530 530 265 265
MISD School (MLK) 2 2 1,600 1,600 800 800
MISD School (149) 1 1 2,800 2,800 1,400 1,400
Subtotal 9 9 41,090 42,230 20,615 21,115 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Irrigation
Single Family Residential 61 100 16,165 26,500 - - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 -
Commercial Irrigaion 31 70 9,300 21,000 - - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 - 5 1,325 -
Church 2 2 530 530 - - - - - - - - - - - -
City 9 9 4,500 4,500 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Subtotal 103 181 30,495 52,530 - - 10 2,650 - 10 2,650 - 10 2,650 - 10 2,650 - 10 2,650 -
Committed 1,094 1,688 336,710 632,070 189,396 392,742 66 16,775 8,825 111 52,816 32,240 91 51,147 30,934 72 31,131 17,871 51 36,200 25,650
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections | GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary
Total Projected Committed Volumes: 1,160 353,485 198,221 1,271 406,301 230,461 1,362 457,448 261,395 1,434 488,578 279,266 1,485 524,778 304,916
Future Development in Feasibility/Design
Louisa Lane Development - 18 - 4,500 - 2,925 - - - 5 1,250 813 6 1,500 975 5 1,250 813
West Lakes Development - 168 - - - 33,600 - - 20 4,000 50 10,000 50 10,000
Subtotal - 186 - 4,500 - 36,525 - - - 5 1,250 813 26 1,500 4,975 55 1,250 10,813 50 - 10,000
Committed Plus Feasibility 1,094 1,874 336,710 636,570 189,396 429,267 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections | GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary
Total Projected Committed Volumes Plus Feasibility 1,160 353,485 198,221 1,276 407,551 231,273 1,393 460,198 267,183 1,520 492,578 295,866 1,621 528,778 331,516

K:\W5841\W5841-1904-00 West Lakes Single-Family Development\2 Design Phase\Reports\Appendices\C\Water and Wastewater Usages and Projections 10.02.19




City of Montgomery, Texas
Developer Acreages Service Demands (Updated October 2, 2019)

10/2/2019
Page 3 of 3

Development Info & Capacities

Water Wastewater Projected Additional Connections and Flow
Current Ultimate Current
Connections | Connections Actual Ultimate Current Ultimate 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Single Family 225 250 150 200
Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections | GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary
Potential Future Development (Within Current City Limits)
HEB Tract (HEB store only) - 1 - 10,000 - 6,500 - - - - - 1 10,000 6,500 - -
HEB Tract (pad sites only) 5 15,000 9,750 - - - - 1 3,000 1,950 1 3,000 1,950 1 3,000 2,100
Montgomery Forest - 195 - 48,750 - 31,688 - - - - 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 2,000
Summit Business Park, Phase 2 - 6 - 4,400 - 2,860 2 1,467 953 2 1,467 953 2 1,467 953 - -
Town Creek Village, Phase 2 - 2 - 20,000 - 13,000 - - - - 2 20,000 13,000 - -
J. Allen Kent - 400 - 100,000 - 65,000 - - 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 2,000
Waterstone, Section 3 - 36 - 9,000 - 5,850 - - - - 5 1,250 813 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 2,000
Waterstone, Section 4 - 80 - 20,000 - 13,000 - - - - - - 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 2,000
Plez Morgan Commercial 7 - 10,500 6,825 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 1,250
1097 Misc. Commercial 10 - 15,000 9,750 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 975 1 1,500 1,250
Misc. Undeveloped (Commercial) - 1,354 - 487,440 - 316,836 2 720 468 2 720 468 2 720 468 2 720 468 2 3,000 2,500
Misc. Undeveloped (Single Family) - 1,641 - 410,250 - 266,663 - - 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 2,000
Misc. Undeveloped (Industrial) - 1 - 5,000 - 3,250 - - 1 5,000 3,250 - - - -
Peter Hill 5.7 Acre Feasibility - 5 - 5,000 - 3,250 3 3,000 1,950 2 2,000 1,300 - -
The Woods of Town Creek - 212 - 53,000 - 42,400 42 10,500 8,400 42 10,500 8,400 42 10,500 8,400 42 10,500 8,400
Subtotal - 3,738 - 1,155,340 - 750,971 6 5,187 3,371 72 28,687 20,221 89 59,437 40,209 97 29,720 20,893 97 32,000 25,500
Potential Future Development (ETJ)
80-Ac Mabry Single Family - 368 - 92,000 - 59,800 - - - - - 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,250 1,500
Stewart Landing - 50 - 18,000 - 11,700 - - 10 3,600 2,340 10 3,600 2,340 10 3,600 2,340 10 2,250 1,500
90-AC Lone Star Parkway - 225 - 56,250 - 36,563 - - 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 2,500 1,625 10 3,600 2,500
Misc. Undeveloped (Single Family) - 6,370 - 1,592,500 - 1,035,125 - - - - - - - -
Misc. Undeveloped (Commercial) - 1,100 - 396,000 - 257,400 5 1,800 1,170 5 1,800 1,170 5 1,800 1,170 5 1,800 1,170 5 7,500 6,250
Subtotal 8,113 - 2,154,750 - 1,400,588 5 1,800 1,170 25 7,900 5,135 35 10,400 6,760 35 10,400 6,760 35 15,600 11,750
Potential Ultimate Totals 1,094 13,725 336,710 3,946,660 189,396 2,580,826 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections | GPD Water | GPD Sanitary | Connections GPD Water | GPD Sanitary
Total Potential Ultimate 1,171 360,472 202,762 1,384 451,124 261,171 1,625 573,608 344,049 1,884 646,108 400,386 2,117 729,908 473,286
I

K:\W5841\W5841-1904-00 West Lakes Single-Family Development\2 Design Phase\Reports\Appendices\C\Water and Wastewater Usages and Projections 10.02.19




Appendix D
Proposed 44.201-Acre West Lakes Development

Proposed Public Utilities

|JEINES CARTER

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



SUNNYRIELDIFARM

-OQ;
_g-o-@°
®
b d
&
S
4 3%
Co-s—g 89 2
© 9
g ¢
o7 ®
:
(©) (o¢]
—J| C8-.O

441201-AciWest]
['Takes]Development

(o]
¢

It @
®,

O " |Existing

1\ LS No. 6

[ee]

@-8=@—3L

Proposed 3"
Sanitary Sewer FM

Approximate Location
of Proposed Public LS

Existing
LS No. 5

Existing
LS "B"

WeMACR CEMETERY

6

VICINITY MAP

Scale: 1 inch equals 10 miles

LEGEND
Wastewater Facilities
@ Manhole

0 Cleanout

A WWTP

A\ Lift Station

A\ Proposed Lift Station
Abd. Gravity Main
Gravity Main

= Proposed Force Main

=== Abd. Force Main

=m=m Force Main

DWest Lakes Boundary
ity Limit

[ ] MCAD Property Info

44.201-AC WEST
LAKES DEVELOPMENT

City of Montgomery

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

0 275 550 N
| ] |

Feet \ E
1 inch equals 550 feet S

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary. No express warranties are made by
Jones| Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

User Name: JLG2

Date: 10/1/2019

Project Number: W5841-1904-00

Path: \\jonescarter.corp\cfs\DA\VOL_4\ROOT\OFFICE\Personal\JLG\Houston\ABennett\W5841-1904-00\West Lakes Development Utility Exhibit.mxd



Appendix E
Proposed 44.201-Acre West Lakes Development

Cost Estimates

.JEINES CARTER

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE
FOR
PROPOSED LIFT STATION FORCE MAIN FOR WEST LAKES DEVELOPMENT
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS
October 1, 2019

Item Unit
No. Description Unit Price Quantity Total
1. Move-in and Start-up LS S 10,000 1 S 10,000
2. Three-inch (3") Force Main LF 30 4,800 144,000
3. Connect proposed three-inch (3") Force Main to Manhole EA 2,500 1 2,500
4. Stormwater Pollution Prevention LS 10,000 1 10,000
5. Clearing & Grubbing LS 5,000 1 5,000
6. Site Restoration LS S 7,500 1 S 7,500
Construction Subtotal S 179,000
Contingencies (20%) 36,000
Easement Acquisition 30,000 )
Pipeline & Railroad Crossing Coordination/Fees 25,000 @
Survey 27,000 )
Engineering 30,000 (6}
Construction Phase Services 22,000 7
Reimbursable Expenses 10,000 ®
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $ 359,000
Notes:

() This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry.
Jones|Carter has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of
determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not
guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

( Contingencies include a 20% cost for additional, unseen, and future costs from time of proposal.

( Includes estimated land cost for acquisition of a 10' sanitary sewer easement along the force main route.

( Includes estimated cost of obtaining approval to cross railroad and pipeline company rights-of-way.

(5) Includes topographic surveying, preparation of easement metes and bounds, and construction staking.
( Includes preliminary phase services, design phase services, and additional engineering services.
( Includes construction phase services and field project representation.
( Includes advertising costs, plan approval expenses, and construction materials testing.

K:\W5841\W5841-1904-00 West Lakes Single-Family Development\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COM - New LS Force Main Cost Estimate



Item

No. Description
Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance

1.

2. Lift Station
3.

5. Site Work
Notes:

Electrical and Diesel Generator

Unit
Unit Qty. Price
L.S. 1 S 30,000
L.S. 1 100,000
L.S. 1 110,000
L.S. 1 60,000
SUBTOTAL

Contingencies (10%)

Engineering
TOTAL

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
WEST LAKES REGIONAL LIFT STATION - OPTION NO. 1
CITY OF MONTGOMERY
September 12,2019

W

v n n

Total
30,000
100,000
110,000

60,000
300,000

30,000
80,000
410,000

(1) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Jones|Carter has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over

competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost

(2) This cost includes a 5' diameter precast concrete wet well coated with a 100% solids epoxy coating, no valve vault, assumes the
depth of the proposed lift station finish floor will not exceed 22-feet (22') from finished grade elevation and is not located in any
flood hazard areas. This estimate assumes the first phase phase with two (2) pumps having a single firm pump capacity of 93 gpm
pumping through the proposed 3-inch force main to a manhole in the system.

(3) This cost includes all on-site electrical, NEMA 4X utility service rack designed to CNP standards; NEMA 4X stainless steel control
panel, transducer and float backup controls, and cellular auto dialer. Cost also includes automatic transfer switch and diesel
generator owned and stored by the District. This cost also includes all duct bank, conduit and wire. The cost also includes an
assumed $10,000 for utility provider costs for extending 3-phase power availability to the site. This cost does not include SCADA.

(4) This cost estimate assumes the site is not located within the 1% annual chance floodplain or within existing wetlands. This

estimate does not include any costs for wetland mitigation, detention basins, mitigation basins, or any other work related to
compensating for wetlands or floodplain impact.

AWS/bmm

C:\Users\aws\AppData\Local\Temp\Bluebeam Software63062497.xlsx



Appendix F
Proposed 44.201-Acre West Lakes Development

Excerpt from Impact Fee Analysis

|JEINES CARTER

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



Table 1.1 September 2017 ESFC Table for Commonly Used Meters

] ] Equivalent Maximum Maximum .
Maximum Continuous . . Maximum
. . . Single Family |Assessable Water | Assessable Waste
Meter Size | Operating Capacity Assessable Fee
(GPM) Home Fee Water Fee %)
(ESFC) ($) ($)
5/8” 15 1.00 1,126 $2,513 $3,639
3/4” 25 1.67 1,881 $4,198 $6,079
1” 40 2.67 3,001 $6,711 $9,712
11/2” 120 8.00 9,006 $20,103 $29,112
27 170 11.33 12,755 $28,471 $41,226
3” 350 23.33 26,264 $58,626 $84,890
4” 600 40.00 44,942 $100,517 $145,429
6” 1,200 80.00 90,064 $201,035 $291,099
8” 1,800 120.00 135,096 $301,552 $436,648




Appendix G
Proposed 44.201-Acre West Lakes Development

Escrow Calculation

.JEINES CARTER

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



ESCROW AGREEMENT, SECTION 2.03 ATTACHMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
AND

Promocon USA, LLC

Dev. No. 1904
THE STATE OF TEXAS E)

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY >

As per section 2.03, the Feasibility Study completed an estimate of the additional escrow amount,
which was determined for administration costs, legal fees, plan reviews, developer coordination,
construction coordination, construction inspection, and warranty of services. The required

additional amount is below:

Administration $ 5,000
City Attorney $ 5,000
City Engineer $ 64,000

TOTAL $ 74,000






|J D N E 5 c A R T E R 6330 West Loop .SOl.Ith, Suite 150
Bellaire, Texas 77401

Phone: 713.777.5337
Fax: 281.363.3459
www.jonescarter.com

September 26, 2019

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77316

Re: Professional Engineering Services for Master Drainage Study of Town Creek Watershed
City of Montgomery
Montgomery County, Texas

Dear Mayor and Council:

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal for the civil engineering services for the study of the Town
Creek Watershed in the City of Montgomery.

Project Understanding

Our understanding is that the City of Montgomery intends to study the Town Creek Watershed which includes
Town Creek and its tributaries. The Town Creek watershed drains to the north and western portions of the City of
Montgomery. Town Creek and its tributaries are FEMA studied streams per FIRM MAP Panel 48339C0200G dated
August 18, 2014. We understand you would like Jones|Carter (JC) to perform a master drainage study to analyze
the existing watershed. We also understand you would like JC to analyze and provide recommendations for the
existing crossing along Anders Branch and potentially lower Town Creek to support the City’s planned
improvements funded through the Texas General Land Office. We understand you would like JC to document and
prepare a written report with exhibits and calculations for your records.

Based on our understanding of the project requirements, review process, approval process, and the general site
characteristics, we prepared the following scope of services and fee proposal for your consideration.

Scope of Services

A master drainage study is used to document the current state of Town Creek watershed and provide the basis
for recommendations and proposed improvements within the watershed. Additionally, the master drainage plan
will provide detailed hydraulics on the Anders Branch tributary to Town Creek which contains several roadway
crossings. The crossings on Anders Branch to be evaluated include Plez Morgan, FM 149, and Dr. Martin Luther
King Jr. Drive. Recommendations for the improvements to the crossings to reduce the impacts of flooding
upstream of FM 149 will be provided.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



JONES|CARTER

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
Page 2
September 26, 2019

The analysis will develop models using the Hydrologic Engineering Center’s Hydrologic Modeling System (HEC-
HMS) and the River Analysis System (HEC-RAS) software packages from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.

The components of this study will include:

e Existing Condition Watershed Evaluation: The drainage areas, level of existing development, and
determination of runoff will be evaluated. HEC-HMS will be utilized to build a watershed model. The
evaluation will utilize the effective FEMA rainfall events identified as 10-, 50-, and 100-year storm
events. Additionally, the new 100-year rainfall event established from the National Oceanographic
and Atmospheric Administration’s Atlas 14 study and adopted by Montgomery County will be
evaluated.

e Anders Branch Hydraulic Evaluation: A hydraulic model will be built utilizing the latest available LIDAR
topography and additional ground survey. Ground survey will provide data on changes within the
creek, as the LIDAR was flown in 2008. Ground survey will also provide details on the existing crossings
along Anders Branch to be evaluated. The flows generated from the Watershed Evaluation will be
utilized in the Hydraulic Evaluation. The cost of the ground survey is not included in this proposal and
will be provided separately.

e Anders Branch Hydraulic Recommendations: Modifications to the existing crossings along Anders
Branch will be evaluated to reduce potential flood impacts. Improvements to Plez Morgan, FM 149,
and Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Drive will be evaluated to minimize restrictions of flows within Anders
Branch. Additionally, potential downstream impacts will be evaluated when restrictions are removed.

JC will prepare two sets of deliverables to be provided for the City. The first deliverable JC will produce is the initial
results memo to document the Anders Branch results, which will include removing existing flow restriction. This
will aid in providing recommendations in the final report that best fit the City’s overall goal for Anders Branch
flood reduction improvements. JC will prepare a final written report with calculations, exhibits, models, final
recommendations, updated construction cost estimates, and other relevant information to provide to the City of
Montgomery for their use. Engineering activities, including the deliverables, is included in the lump sum fee.

Proposed Fee

1. Data Collection and Review $5,000
2. Preparation of HEC-HMS Model $15,000
3. Preparation of HEC-RAS Model $20,000
4. Preparation of the Initial Results Memo $3,000
5. Preparation of Master Drainage Study $7,000

Total Lump Sum Engineering Fee: $50,000

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



JONES|CARTER

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
Page 3
September 26, 2019

Project Schedule

JC will complete the scope of services defined herein per the following simplified schedule. Note that durations
are in calendar days, commencing with receipt of a signed proposal.

e Data Collection 7 calendar days

e HEC-HMS 20 calendar days
e HEC-RAS 30 calendar days*
e Initial Results Memo 5 calendar days

e  Master Drainage Study 15 calendar days

*HEC-RAS model work will begin after receipt of completed topographic survey.
Special Considerations
This proposal is based on the following special considerations:

1. This proposal shall be subject to the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) signed between the City of
Montgomery, Texas and Jones & Carter, Inc on October 18, 2014.

2. The models will be created utilizing existing LIDAR and GIS information already acquired by JC.
Topographic surveys or other field verification of this data is not included in this scope of services.

3. The proposed fees shall be considered in their entirety for the scope of services. Should you wish to
contract with us for only a portion of the work, we reserve the right to negotiate individual scope items
on their own merits.

4. This proposal shall be valid for sixty days from this date and may be extended upon approval by this office.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



JONES|CARTER

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
Page 4
September 26, 2019

We thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. An executed copy of this proposal will serve as our
notice to proceed. Please return one copy to our office. Should you have any questions, please call.

Sincerely,

Chris Roznovsky, P.E. Kyle Blank, P.E., C.F.M.
Department Manager Department Manager
Municipal and District Services Hydrology and Hydraulics
KJB/mls

V/Opportunity Documents/OP100-3677-00/PP-Towne Creek Master Drainage Study 20190926v2.docx
Enclosure(s)

APPROVED BY:

Signature

Name and Title (Printed)

Date

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106






ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, LEVYING A SEVEN
PERCENT (7%) TAX UPON THE COST OF OCCUPANCY OF ANY SLEEPING ROOM
FURNISHED BY ANY HOTEL, MOTEL OR OTHER OVERNIGHT LODGING WITHIN
THE CITY OR ITS EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION USED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH CHAPTER 351 OF THE TEXAS TAX CODE; PROVIDING FOR THE
COLLECTION OF THE OCCUPANCY TAX; PROVIDING FOR CIVIL PENALITIES
AND INTEREST FOR DELINQUENCY IN PAYING THE CITY OCCUPANCY TAX;
PROVIDING FOR A FINE OF UP TO $500 FOR VIOLATING THIS ORDINANCE AND
FOR OTHER CIVIL REMEDIES; DESIGNATING THE USE OF THE REVENUE
DERIVED TO THE CITY FROM THE OCCUPANCY TAX; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT
HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN
MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER
PUBLICATION

WHEREAS, Section 351.002 of the Texas Tax Code (“Code”) provides for the imposition and
collection of a local municipal occupancy tax on a person using a hotel, as that term is defined in
Section 156.001 of the Code and in this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, Section 351.003 of the Code provides that a municipality may not charge more than
seven percent (7%) of the price paid for a room in a hotel; and

WHEREAS, Section 351.0025 of the Code provides that a municipality of less than 35,000 may

impose by ordinance the hotel occupancy tax in the municipality’s extraterritorial jurisdiction
(“ETJ”); and

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Montgomery, Texas finds that the population of the
City is less than 35,000; and

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Montgomery now deems it appropriate and in the
best interest of its citizens to establish a hotel occupancy tax of seven percent (7%0) on a person

using a hotel in the City or in its EJT;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MONTGOMERY, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. Definitions: The following word, terms, and phrases are defined as follows:

(a) City: The City of Montgomery, Texas.

Page -3



(b)

C)

(e)

®

(2)

(h)

Hotel: Any building in which the public may, for a consideration, obtain sleeping
accommodations, including hotels, motels, tourist homes, tourist houses, tourist
courts, lodging houses, inns, rooming houses, or bed and breakfasts where rooms are
furnished for a consideration, but not including hospitals, sanitariums, nursing
homes or other housing facilities owned and operated by institutions of higher
education as described in Section 156.001 of the Code.

Considerations: The costs of the room in a hotel only if the room is ordinarily used
for sleeping and not including the cost of any food served or personal services
rendered to the occupant of such room not related to the cleaning and readying of
such room for occupancy.

Occupancy: The use or possession or the right to the use or possession of any room
or rooms in a hotel if the room is one which is ordinarily used for sleeping and if the
occupant is other than a permanent resident as hereinafter defined.

Occupant: Anyone who for a consideration uses, possesses, or has a right to use or
possess any room or rooms in a hotel under any lease, concession, permit, right of
access, license, contract or agreement. The term does not include a permanent
resident as hereinafter defined.

Person: Any individual, company corporation or association owning, operating,
managing or controlling any hotel within the City or the City’s extraterritorial
jurisdiction.

Quarterly Period: The regular municipal fiscal quarters of the year, the first quarter
being composed of the months of October, November and December; the second
quarter being the months of January, February and March; the third quarter being the
months of April, May and June; and the fourth quarter being the months of July
August and September

Permanent Resident: An occupant who has or shall have the right o occupancy of
any room or room in a hotel for at least thirty (30) consecutive days during the
current calendar year of preceding year.

SECTION 2, Occupancy Tax Levied — Amount — Exemptions

There is hereby levied a tax upon the cost of occupancy of any hotel within the City or its
extraterritorial jurisdiction where the cost of occupancy is at the rate of $2 or more per day, such tax
to be equal to seven percent (7%) of the consideration paid by the occupant of such room to such
hotel, exclusive of the occupancy taxes imposed by other governmental agencies.

(a) No tax shall be imposed hereunder on a permanent resident.

(b) No tax shall be imposed hereunder upon a corporation or association
organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, or educational
purposes, no part of the net earnings of which derives to the benefit of any
private sharcholder or individual,

(¢) No tax shall be imposed hereunder upon federal or state employees traveling
on official business,

Page -3



SECTION 3. Collection of Occupancy Tax

Every person owning, operating, managing or controlling any hotel within the City or its
extraterritorial jurisdiction shall collect the tax levied by this Ordinance for the City of Montgomery.

SECTION 4. Quarterly Reports to City Secretary—Audits

(a) On or before the last day of the month immediately following each quarterly period, every
person required to collect the tax imposed herein shall file a report with the City Secretary
showing the consideration paid for all room occupancies in the preceding quarter, the
amount of the tax collected on such occupancies, and any other information the City
Secretary may reasonably require, Such person shall pay the amount of tax coliected from
the occupants during the period of the report at the time of filing the report.

(b) There shall also be furnished to the City Secretary at the time of payment of said tax, a copy
of the quarterly report filed with the State Comptroller in connection with the state hotel
occupancy tax.

(c) The City Secretary shall, upon reasonable notice, have access to books and records kept by
any person required to collect the tax imposed herein which may be necessary to enable the
City Secretary to determine the correctness of any report files as required by this section and
the amount of taxes due under the provisions of the Ordinance,

SECTION 5. Civil Penalty and Interest for Delinquent Payments

(a) If any person required by the provisions of this Ordinance to collect the tax imposed herein,
or make reports as required herein, and pay to the City the tax imposed herein, shall fail to
collect such tax, file such report or pay such tax for at least one complete municipal fiscal
quarter, the person shall pay to the City the tax due, together with a penalty of fifteen-
percent (15%) of the tax due that is not timely filed,

(b) In addition to the penalty set out herein, a person who fails to pay a tax due under this
Ordinance shall pay the City interest on the unpaid amount at the legal rate provided by
Section 111.060(b) of the Code.

SECTION 6. Criminal Penalties

If any person required by the provisions of this Ordinance to collect the tax imposed herein, or make
reports as required herein, and pay to the City the tax imposed herein, shall fail to collect such tax,
file such report or pay such tax, or if any such person shall files a false report, or such person shall
violate any of the provisions of this Ordinance, the City is authorized to impose a misdemeanor fine
for a violation of this Ordinance. A petson who violates this Ordinance shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be assessed a fine not to exceed $500.

Page - 3




SECTION 7. Other Civil Remedies by the City

The City is hereby authorized to take the following actions against any person required to collect the
tax imposed hereby and pay the collection over to the City and who has failed to file a report, or
filed a false report, or failed to pay the tax when due:

(a) Require the forfeiture of any revenue the City allowed the hotel operator to retain for
its cost of collecting the tax;

(b) Bring suit against the hotel for noncompliance; and/or

(¢) Bring suit against the hotel seeking any other remedies provided under Texas Law.,

SECTION 8. Use of Revenue Derived from Levy of Hotel Occupancy Tax.

The proceeds of the hotel occupancy tax levied by this Ordinance may be used by the City for the
sole purpose of promoting tourism and the convention and hotel industry, and that use is limited to
the following:

(a) The acquisition of sites for and the construction, improvement, enlarging, equipping,
repairing, operation and maintenance of convention center facilities or visitor
information centers, or both;

(b) The furnishing of facilities, personnel, and materials for the registration of
convention delegates or registrants;

(c) Advertising and conducting solicitations and promotional programs to attract tourists
and convention delegates or registrants to the City or its vicinity;

(d) The encouragement, promotion, improvement, and application of the arts, including
instrumental and vocal music, dance, drama, folk art, creative writing, architecture,
design and allied fields, painting, sculpture photograph, graphic and craft arts,
motion pictures, radio, television, tape and sound recording, and other arts related to
the presentation, performance, execution, and exhibition of these major art forms;

(e) Historical restoration and preservation projects or activities or advertising and
conducting solicitation and promotional programs to encourage tourists and
convention delegates to visit preserved historic sites or museums:

(H At or in the immediate vicinity of convention center facilities or visitor
information centers; or

2) Located elsewhere in the City or its vicinity that would be frequented by
tourists and convention delegates, or other visitors to the City.

SECTION 9. Severability Clause.

If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance or the application of same to any person or set of circumstances, shall for any reason be
held to be unconstitutional, void, or invalid or otherwise unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability shall not affect other provisions of this Ordinance or their application to other sets
of circumstances and to this end all provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Page - 3




SECTION 10. Repealing Clause.

All City ordinances or portions of ordinances that are inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance
are hereby repealed.

SECTION 11. Texas Open Meetings Clause.

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was
considered was open to the public as required and that the public notice of the time, place, and
putpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the
Texas Government Code.

SECTION 12. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall become effective and be in full force after its publication as provided by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of 2019.

Sara Countryman, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Larry L. Foerster, City Attorney

Page -3













America Tower

2929 Allen Parkway

. Suite 3450

RADCLIFFE Houston, Texas 77019-7120

713.237.1221

BoOBBITT rbaplaw.com
ADAMS
POLLEY

October 4, 2019

Richard J. Tramm

City Administrator

City of Montgomery, Texas
101 Old Plantersville Road

Montgomery, Texas 77316

RE: Bond Counsel Services Agreement with the City of Montgomery, Texas (the "City")
related to the City's proposed refunding bonds (the "Bonds™)

Dear Mr. Tramm:

Thank you very much for considering us to provide bond counsel services to the City.
‘The purpose of this letter is to set forth mutually agreeable terms of our engagement.

Bond counsel is engaged as a recognized independent expert whose primary
responsibility is to render an objective legal opinion with respect to the authorization and
issuance of bonds.

1. General Duties. As bond counsel we will examine applicable law; prepare the resolution
or order authorizing and securing the Bonds (the "Order") and other authorizing
documents; consult with the parties to the transaction prior to the issuance of the Bonds;
after approval by any required regulatory agency, secure Texas Attorney General
approval of the Bonds and the registration of the Bonds by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas; review certified proceedings; and undertake such
additional duties as we deem necessary to render the opinion with respect to the Bonds,

2, Content of Opinion. Subject to the completion of proceedings for the Bonds to our
satisfaction, we will render our opinion that:

a) the City is a duly created and validly existing municipality in the State of Texas
with authority to adopt the Order, perform the agreement on its part contained
therein and issue the Bonds;

b) the Order has been duly adopted by the City and constitutes a valid and binding
obligation of the City enforceable upon the City;

00288158




Mr. Richard J. Tramm
City of Montgomery
October 4, 2019

Page 2

00285158

c) the Order creates a valid lien on the funds or assets pledged by the Order for the
security of the Bonds on a parity with other bonds (if any) issued or to be issued
under the Order;

d) the Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the City and are
valid and binding obligations of the City, payable solely from the source provided
therefor in the Order;

e) the interest paid on the Bonds will be excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes; and

) the Bonds are exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 and
Texas securities law and the Order is exempt from qualification under the Trust
Indenture Act of 1939,

Delivery of Opinion. An opinion will be executed and delivered by us in written form on
the date the Bonds are issued in exchange for their purchase price (the "Closing") and
will be based on facts and law existing as of its date. Upon delivery of the opinion for the
Bonds, our responsibilities as bond counsel will be concluded.

Reliance. In rendering our opinion, we will rely upon the certified proceedings and other
certifications of public officials and other persons furnished to us without undertaking to
verify the same by independent investigation. We do not review the financial condition
of the City, the feasibility of the project to be financed with the Bonds, or the adequacy of
the security provided to Bond owners, and we will express no opinion relating thereto. In
performing our services as bond counsel, our client will be the City and we will represent
its interests. We assume that other parties fo the transaction will retain such counsel as
they deem necessary and appropriate to represent their interests in this transaction. Our
representation of the City does not alter our responsibility to render an objective opinion
as bond counsel.

Compensation. Based upon: (a) our current understanding to the terms, structure, and
size of the financing, (b) the duties we will undertake for such financing, (¢) the time we
anticipate devoting to this financing, and (d) the responsibilities we assume for rendering
our opinions, our fee as bond counsel will be the greater of two percent (2%) of the
principal amount of the Bonds or $30,000.

Expenses. The fee quoted in paragraph 5 is exclusive of our out-of-pocket expenses,
including travel costs, photocopying, deliveries, transcript binding and other necessary
office disbursements, We will deliver a transcript to each party to the transaction. We
will include our actual expenses as of the Closing, plus an estimate of future expenses on
our invoice for our services as bond counsel hereunder. We will not true up these
charges based on actual expenses incurred, meaning the City will neither receive a refund
nor an additional bill after the Closing.




Mr. Richard J. Tramm
City of Montgomery
QOctober 4, 2019

Page 3

Payment. Our fee is payable at the Closing out of bond proceeds and we customarily do
not submit any statement until the Closing.

Termination. This agreement for bond counsel services may be terminated by you or by
us at any time, in which event we shall be paid at termination for services rendered to the
date of termination as follows:

a) If the City has authorized bonds, and if such bonds or any part thercof have not
been registered by the Comptroller (which registration would cause our full fee to
be due on the bonds registered pursuant to other provisions of this contract), then
we shall be paid for our services relating to the authorized but unregistered bonds
based upon the steps taken prior to registration, such payment to be the percentage
set out below of the fee which would have been due to us had the bonds been
registered. Such steps and percentages being as follows:

i. Transcript submitted to the Attorney, 75%; and
i Bonds approved by the Attorney General, 95%.
b) All expenses incurred by us on behalf of the City.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such charges, other than actual expenses, shall be

payable unless and until the Closing of the Bonds, or a substantially similar financing.

If the foregoing conforms to your understanding of the terms of our engagement, please

accept this letter agreement by authorizing and executing the same in the places provided below.

00288158

Very truly yours,

Jonatlygn D. Polley
Marfaging Member




Mr. Richard J. Tramm
City of Montgomery
October 4, 2019

Page 4

We have read the foregoing engagement letter and have agreed to its terms and
conditions.

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

Name:

Title:

Date:

00288158



	AGENDA - CITY COUNCIL 100819
	ITEM #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM #2 - RESOLUTION MCAD BOARD NOMINATION
	ITEM #3 - CANCEL 2ND MEETINGS OF THE MONTHS OF NOV & DEC
	ITEM #4 - STREET CLOSURE APPROVAL FOR SUNDAY MARKET BY HMBA
	ITEM #5 - DESIGNATE COURIER AS OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER BY RESOLUTION
	ITEM #6 - PRESENTATION BY MONTGOMERY HISTORIC SOCIETY
	ITEM #7 - WEST LAKES UTILITY AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY 
	ITEM #7 - WEST LAKES UTILITY AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY 
	ITEM #7A - WEST LAKES FEASIBILITY REPORT

	ITEM #8 - AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF TOWNE CREEK MASTER DRAINAGE STUDY
	ITEM #8 - AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF TOWNE CREEK MASTER DRAINAGE STUDY
	ITEM #8A - TOWNE CREEK MASTER DRAINAGE STUDY

	ITEM #9 - ORDINANCE FOR HOTEL, MOTEL & OVERNIGHT STAY OCCUPANCY TAX
	ITEM #10 - REVISED ACTION FOR OCTOBEARFEST STREET CLOSURE
	ITEM #11 - AUTHORIZE ENGAGEMENT LETTER FOR BOND COUNSEL FOR 2012 BONDS

